
Commissioners of
St Michaels

Working Session
January 10, 2024, 5:00 pm - 7:00 pm

St. Michaels Branch of the Talbot Co.
Library

106 S. Fremont Street
St. Michaels, MD  21663

AGENDA and DOCUMENTS

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 1 of 257



Table of Contents

Cover Page 1

Table of Contents 2

Agenda 3

Memo - Nelson Presentation St. Michaels Day 5

Nelson Presentation St. Michaels Day 6

June 23 2023 Financial Report from WLMC 10

Meeting Minutes 12.13.2023 55

December 2023 - Police Department 59

December 2023 - Monthly Disbursements 69

December 2023 - Actual vs. Budget 81

December 2023 - P  L 87

December 2023 - Planning Zoning Report 91

December 2023 - Building Code Monthly Report 92

December 2023 - Public works report 93

December 2023 - SMPW Fuel Report 95

Appointment of New Board Members 2024 96

Memo - Ordinance No. 550 Cannabis Zoning 97

Ordinance No. 550 - Cannabis Zoning 103

Cannabis Zoning Ordinance No. 550  Exhibit A 112

Memo - Ordinance No. 552 - Commercial Lawn Care Regualtions 113

Ordinance No. 552 - Commercial Lawn Care Regulations 114

Memo - San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan 117

San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan 165

San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan - Public Comments 189

1.10.24 Proposed COSM Calendar 257

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 2 of 257



AGENDA
 

Commissioners of
St Michaels

Working Session
Wednesday, January 10, 2024, 5:00 pm - 7:00 pm

St. Michaels Branch of the Talbot Co. Library
106 S. Fremont Street

St. Michaels, MD  21663

5:00 pm - Call to Order for Working Session - Pledge of Allegiance1.

Announcements from COSM and Staff2.

Comments from the Public 3.

Special Presentation4.

Proposal - Michmas - End of Summer, Beginning of Harvesta.

WLMC - Presentation of FY23 Financial Statementb.

Consent Agenda for Minutes, and Events5.

Minutes from 12.13.2023a.

Department Reportsb.

Police Department
Finance 
Planning and Zoning
Code Compliance
Public Works

Boards and Commission Appointments6.

Appointment of New Board Members 2024a.

Ordinance for Introduction/Discussion7.

Ordinance No. 550 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 340, “ZONING”, OF
THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF ST. MICHAELS, TO ADD PROVISIONS RELATING
TO THE OPERATION OF CERTAIN CANNABIS BUSINESSES IN TOWN BY
AMENDING THE LISTINGS OF PERMITTED USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL USE
CATEGORY AND THE COMMERCIAL USE CATEGORY; PROVIDING FOR
SUPPLEMENTAL USE REGULATIONS FOR CANNABIS BUSINESSES;
REORDERING THE USES LISTED IN THE AGRICULTURAL USE CATEGORY;
AND AMENDING THE TABLE OF PERMITTED USES TO PERMIT THE
OPERATION OF CANNABIS BUSINESSES IN CERTAIN ZONES.

a.

Ordinance No. 552 -AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF
ST. MICHAELS, CHAPTER 216, “NOISE”, § 216-6, “EXEMPTIONS,” TO PROHIBIT
COMMERCIAL LAWN CARE CONTRACTORS FROM OPERATING LAWN
MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT ON SATURDAYS

b.

Old Business8.

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 3 of 257



Public Participation: All comments from the public will be taken during the period set aside for
"Comments from the Public." The "Comments from the Public" portion of the Commission agenda

shall have a limited time period as determined by the Commissioners, and shall be at the
beginning and at the end of each agenda. To be recognized, a member of the public should raise
his or her hand and wait to be recognized by the President. Comments and questions should be

kept brief and to the point, and be directed to the President.

San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plana.

New Business9.

Comments from the Public10.

Comments from the Commissioners11.

Commissioners Proposed Calendar 202412.

Announcement of Future Meetings - to be held at Library13.

January 15th, 2024 - MLK Day - Office Closed
January 25th, 2024 - COSM Legislative Session
February 14th, 2024 - COSM Working Session
February 19th, 2024 - President's Day - Office Closed
February 28th, 2024 - COSM Legislative Session

Adjournment of Open Session14.

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 4 of 257



 

Board:            Town Commission   

Meeting Date:         January 10th, 2024   

Agenda Subject:    Presentation by JoN Nelson Regarding the Establishment of a New Event, 

Saint Michaels Days      

Recommendation: Presentation and Discussion        

_____________________________________________________________________                                

Background Information:   

JoN Nelson has asked to make a short presentation regarding the potential establishment of a 
new event, Saint Michaels Days.  Please see attached email.  Mr. Nelson is working with the St. 
Michaels Business Association to determine their interest.  If there is interest from downtown 
businesses, he may approach the Town Commissioners about adopting a proclamation in support 
of the initiative.                
  
Action: 
 
Presentation and discussion.      
 

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 5 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 6 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 7 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 8 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 9 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 10 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 11 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 12 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 13 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 14 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 15 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 16 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 17 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 18 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 19 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 20 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 21 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 22 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 23 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 24 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 25 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 26 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 27 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 28 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 29 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 30 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 31 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 32 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 33 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 34 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 35 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 36 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 37 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 38 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 39 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 40 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 41 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 42 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 43 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 44 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 45 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 46 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 47 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 48 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 49 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 50 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 51 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 52 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 53 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 54 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 1 of 4 
 

MINUTES 

Commissioners of 
St Michaels 

Meeting Minutes Working and Legislative Session 
Wednesday, December 13, 2023, 5:00 pm - 8:00 pm 

St. Michaels Branch of the Talbot Co. Library 
106 S. Fremont Street 
St. Michaels, MD 21663 

 

 
1. 5:00 pm - Call to Order for Working & Legislative Session - Pledge of Allegiance 

Commissioner Breimhurst, President, called to order a live and remote Working Session of the 
Commissioners of St. Michaels at 5:00 p.m. in St. Michaels, Maryland and the Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Present at the meeting were Commissioners Joyce Harrod, Al Mercier, 
Tad DuPont and Katrina Whittington. Other Representatives included Town Administrator Rob 
Straebel, Town Clerk Kristen Payne, Town Planner Steve Ball, Finance Clerk Vickie Sharp and 
Chief Oswald. With approximately 24 members of the public and Zoom present as well. 

2. Announcement of Closed Session 

The Commissioners voted to go into a Closed Session after the Open Session on Wednesday, 
December 13, 2023 pursuant to Maryland Code, under the Open Meetings Act, General 
Provisions Article Section §3-305(b) to discuss the following: (1) To discuss the appointment, 
employment, assignment, promotion, promotion, discipline, demotion, compensation, removal, 
resignation, or performance evaluation of appointees, employees, or officials over whom this 
public body has jurisdiction; any other personnel matter that affects one or more specific 
individuals 

3. Announcements from COSM and Staff 

Commissioner Whittington joined the St. Michaels Rotary Club for their 20th year of taking 
families shopping. 

Commissioner Harrod joined the Mid-Shore Reginal Council, Economical Development and 
MACo down at the Hyatt Regency to discuss the projects that have been completed. 

Commissioner DuPunt stated that the State of Maryland cut 3.3 billion dollars in highway funding. 
Commissioners are not sure how this is going to affect future highway projects for the town and 
projects from the Department of Nature Resources. 

Commissioner Briemhurst commended everyone that made Christmas in St. Michaels a 
success. A special thanks to Chief Oswald and the extra officers brought in to keep everything 
moving on schedule and to get the streets cleared as quickly as possible. Also wanted to thank 
Town staff and the Public Works department who had extra people on hand to get everything 
picked up. He also mentioned that the lighted boat parade was a wonderful event. 

Rob Straebel stated there was a fire on December 3rd at the Town's pump station on Marengo 
Street. Started at about 11pm and believe to had originated in the attic and likely to have been 
electical. Fire Marshall's report will be forthcoming. Rob has been speaking with Emergency 
Services Engineers to make sure safeguards are in place. Rob reached out to our insurance 
carrier LGIT, and an adjuster came out to complete a report. Fire Chief Larry Cooper set up a 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 55 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 2 of 4 
 

Tanker Task force, which requires all neighboring fire stations to respond to a fire in St. Michaels. 
The pump station on Gloria Avenue will be able to supply water to the town sufficiently through the 
winter and early spring months. Rob to send out a Constant Contact to keep the community 
updated. The draft Environmental Concern Master Plan will be presented on January 10, 2024, 
next Commissioners meeting. The town library meeting room will not be available after March 1st, 
2024, due to the library undergoing construction. Kristen is working with Christ Church to see if 
the Parish Hall could be available for us to use during that time for all meetings. Canton Street 
update, the sewer lines have been installed. The culverts have also been installed and final 
grading has taken place today. Compaction tests will be conducted tomorrow, December 14, 
2023. If all goes well, the paving will be done on Friday, December 15, 2023. Rob announces 
new Town Clerk Kristen Payne, who joined the office on December 4, 2023. Rob will be on 
vacation December 26, 2023 - January 1, 2024. Returning to the office January 2, 2024. 

Chief Oswald stated that the Shop with a Cop on December 5, 2023, was a huge success. They 
were able to provide $100 to each of the 50 children that attended. A party for those children 
followed on Thursday, December 7, 2023. Officer Dylan Nepert joins the force and is currently in 
training. 

Steve Ball stated there will be new projects coming in the new year. Regarding the Environmental 
Concern project, we have a very tight time frame to approve the plan for Open Space funding. 
Planning Commission made some recommendations regarding the new Cannabis Zoning text 
amendments. Those will be coming before the Commissioners in January. 

4. Comments from the Public 

John Novak stated concern for the lack of taxes paid to the Town by the CBMM. CBMM owns 
three properties in town with estimated value of $22 million and that the taxes on those properties 
could estimate roughly $107,000 annually in taxes for the Town. However, the CBMM claims their 
non-profit status is the result of not having to pay any tax dollars to the town (i.e. real estate, 
entertainment, etc.). CBMM just recently purchased the tour boat The Patriot. In recent years, the 
tour boat has provided the town roughly $50,000 in entertainment tax, annually. Since CBMM now 
owns this tour boat, the town will no longer be receiving those tax dollars. (Attachment) 

5. Special Presentation 

Roy Myers and Anna Johnson, Project Manager for Bayland presented a power point on the San 
Domingo Creek and West Side Stormwater and Harbor Infrastructure Assessment and Flood 
Mitigation Plan. Roy stated that this was initially brought to the Commissioners in 2020 for the 
DNR study of the Main Harbor. The purpose of that study was to look at the sea level rise and the 
storm surge in the main harbor for 2050 and to identify at risk areas. The grant request has been 
submitted as of December 13, 2023 to look at the final design permitting and construction for the 
living shoreline at Back Creek Park and the additional assessment of the tide gate under the 
nature trail bridge. Members from Envision the Choptank were present and have agreed to 
assisting with finding more funding for grants. 

St. Michaels Day proposal has been moved to January 10, 2024. 

6. Consent Agenda for Minutes, Events, and Department Reports 

Consent agenda (minutes and department reports) were approved as presented. Commissioner 
Harrod made a motion to accept the consent agenda, seconded by Commissioner DuPont, was 
passed on roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

Events Sign permit was approved, Commissioner Harrod made a motion to accept the Hearts on 
Talbot event, seconded by Commissioner Whittington, was passed on roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

7. Ordinance for Introduction/Discussion 
Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 56 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 3 of 4 
 

Ordinance No. 552 - Leaf Blowers - Has been sent back to staff to re-draft. 

Ordinance No. 553 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 
AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF ST. MICHAELS, CHAPTER 98 "BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES AND PANELS", § 98-4 "PARKS AND RECREATION 
ADVISORY BOARD" TO EXPAND MEMBERSHIP ON THE BOARD FROM FIVE TO 
SEVEN MEMBERS. Rob asks to set public hearing for January 24, 2024. Commissioner 
Dupont calls for motion to approve Ordinance 553, seconded by Commissioner Harrod, was 
passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

8. Old Business 

a. Website Redesign and Maintenance Approval 

Rob stated after reviewing the ten proposals, he and staff have identified two finalists and 
recommends moving forward with CivicPlus based on cost, usability, their experience 
and previous website development. Commissioner Dupont motions to approve, 
seconded by Commissioner Whittington, was passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

b. Trail Phase II Final Grant Agreement 

Steve stated that Maryland Department of Transportation has awarded the Town of St. 
Michaels an additional grant of $48,260 for the additional 1.25 miles of the nature trail. 
Rauch Engineering will complete 100% of the construction engineered drawings. 
Commissioner Harrod motions to approve, seconded by Commissioner Whittington, was 
passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

c. Approve Design Fees for ADA Bathroom at New Admin Office 

Rob stated on November 8, 2023, Commissioners directed staff to seek additional 
architectural proposals to develop engineered plans for ADA compliant bathroom at the 
Environmental Concern property for the new Town Office. Chesapeake Green Building 
and Design, Inc. proposed $1,100 for total cost including permits for biddable plans. 
Commissioner Mercier motioned to approve the ADA proposal from Chesapeake Green 
Building and Design, Inc., seconded by Commissioner Whittington, was passed on a roll 
call vote 5-0 in favor. 

d. Award Bid for Painting of Interior and Exterior Environmental Buildings 

Rob stated that the Town received four bids. Rob recommends Certa-Pro Painters to 
complete projects. The owner of Certa-Pro Painters was present to field questions from 
Commissioners. Commissioner Harrod motion to approve, seconded by Commissioner 
Briemhurst, was passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

9. New Business 

a. Wetlands Mitigation Plan - Grace Street 

Steve stated on November 6, 2023, the Town received MDE's first overdue notice 
regarding the failure to submit the reports and a request to remedy the situation. Steve 
stated that he believes that this required work was overlooked during a time of the 
Town's administrative staff transitional period and was never addressed. Requesting 
sole source contract with Environmental Systems Analysis, Inc. for a five-year period. 
Commissioner DuPont motion to approve, seconded by Commissioner Harrod, was 
passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

b. 2024 Holiday & COSM Meeting Schedule 

Commissioner Breimhurst motioned to approve the 2024 Holiday and COSM Meeting 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 57 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute Page 4 of 4 
 

Schedule, seconded by Commissioner Whittington, was passed on a roll call vote 5-0 in 
favor. 

10. Comments from the Public 

Resident stated that the Muskrat Park Christmas Tree was vandalized again. Suggested putting 
cameras in. Resident had questions regarding the plans for the new park at the Environmental 
Concern property off of Boundary Lane and whether or not the plans for options had been 
presented to the public. Commissioners stated that all information is posted on the Town’s 
website for review. 
Resident stated concerns for the budget that was presented and wanted to urge the 
Commissioners to be mindful. 

11. Comments from the Commissioners 

No Comments 

12. Announcement of Future Meetings - to be held at Library 

December 25, 2023 - Christmas Day - Town Office Closed 
January 1, 2024 - New Year's Day - Town Office Closed 
January 10, 2024 - COSM Working Session 
January 15, 2024 - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day - Town Office Closed 
January 24, 2024 - COSM Legislative Session 

13. Closed Session Statement 

The Commissioners voted to go into a Closed Session after the Open Session on Wednesday, 
December 13, 2023 pursuant to Maryland Code, under the Open Meetings Act, General 
Provisions Article Section §3-305(b) to discuss the following: (1) To discuss the appointment, 
employment, assignment, promotion, promotion, discipline, demotion, compensation, removal, 
resignation, or performance evaluation of appointees, employees, or officials over whom this 
public body has jurisdiction; any other personnel matter that affects one or more specific 
individuals. Commissioner Harrod motion to approve, seconded by Commissioner DuPont, was 
passed on roll call vote 5-0 in favor. 

14. Adjournment of Open Session 

At close of Open Session, COSM will convene into Closed Session 

15. Adjournment of Closed Session 

Public Participation: All comments from the public will be taken during the period set aside for 
"Comments from the Public." The "Comments from the Public" portion of the Commission agenda 

shall have a limited time period as determined by the Commissioners, and shall be at the 
beginning and at the end of each agenda. To be recognized, a member of the public should raise 
his or her hand and wait to be recognized by the President. Comments and questions should be 

kept brief and to the point, and be directed to the President. 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 58 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 59 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 60 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 61 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 62 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 63 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 64 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 65 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 66 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 67 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 68 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

12/04/2023 Hopkins Sales QuickBooks ... 1042 · General Che...

Clear Credit 12/04/2023 Hopkins Sales 20000 · *Accounts P... 0.00

TOTAL 0.00

12/04/2023 Xerox QuickBooks ... 1042 · General Che...

Clear Old Credit 12/04/2023 Xerox Clear Old Credit 20000 · *Accounts P... 0.00

TOTAL 0.00

3407 12/07/2023 At the Scene 1042 · General Che...

397669 12/01/2023 Police Janitorial 64052 · Police Janit... -100.00
Admin. Janito... 62092 · Admin Janit... -30.00

TOTAL -130.00

3408 12/07/2023 Breezeline Acct.#:  8335 ... 1042 · General Che...

410-745-9535 11/21/2023 Admin. Cable 62094 · Admin Offic... -82.16
Admin. Telep... 62088 · Admin Tele... -303.09

TOTAL -385.25

3409 12/07/2023 Core & Main LP 1042 · General Che...

T931717 11/17/2023 Water Dept. ... 69051 · Water Mater... -6,459.16

TOTAL -6,459.16

3410 12/07/2023 East Coast Poly So... Sidewalk lift ... 1042 · General Che...

2310-1813-2403 11/22/2023 Sidewalk lift 5... 65083 · Streets Mai... -675.00

TOTAL -675.00

3411 12/07/2023 Galls, LLC Acct.# 5417653 1042 · General Che...

026294372 11/17/2023 Police Unifor... 64043 · Police Unifo... -35.98

TOTAL -35.98

3412 12/07/2023 Kelley Investigative... 1042 · General Che...

Polygraph /Nepert 11/14/2023 Police Person... 64042 · Police Pers... -300.00

TOTAL -300.00

3413 12/07/2023 Levan Ruff, LLC 1042 · General Che...

268 12/03/2023 Legal Expens... 6204 · Legal Expens... -9,957.95

TOTAL -9,957.95

3414 12/07/2023 Lumberyard 1042 · General Che...

526997 11/03/2023 Supplies 62096 · Municipal Bl... -67.88
527175 11/07/2023 Supplies 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -80.25
527569 11/15/2023 Screw Hook/S... 65066 · M/G Miscell... -66.28

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 1

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 69 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

527699 11/17/2023 Coil Chain 65083 · Streets Mai... -21.99
527904 11/22/2023 Ext. Cord/Glo... 62096 · Municipal Bl... -19.44
527995 11/27/2023 16oz Interior ... 62096 · Municipal Bl... -7.99
527998 11/27/2023 HD Swinging ... 62096 · Municipal Bl... -30.99
528062 11/28/2023 Nifty Pick Up ... 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -29.78
528254 11/30/2023 Battery - SMPD 64053 · Police Offic... -31.98

TOTAL -356.58

3415 12/07/2023 Mahan Rykiel Asso... VOID: Profes... 1042 · General Che...

TOTAL 0.00

3416 12/07/2023 Marise Galgano Reimburse f... 1042 · General Che...

Reimb 12/2023 12/06/2023 Reimburse for... 650918 · Park Enha... -84.55

TOTAL -84.55

3417 12/07/2023 Maryland State Ret... 1042 · General Che...

AL240269 12/01/2023 Admin. quarte... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -392.87
LEOPS quart... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -567.48

TOTAL -960.35

3418 12/07/2023 Pierson Comfort G... 1042 · General Che...

50263 12/07/2023 Toilets 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -385.40

TOTAL -385.40

3419 12/07/2023 Roy B. Myers Supplies CO... 1042 · General Che...

Reimb. Exp. 12/23 12/07/2023 Supplies COS... 62094 · Admin Offic... -8.48

TOTAL -8.48

3420 12/07/2023 ShoreGate Storage... Unit R11 - De... 1042 · General Che...

295 11/27/2023 Storage Unit ... 62105 · Storage Unit -140.00
Insurance 62105 · Storage Unit -9.00

TOTAL -149.00

3421 12/07/2023 ShoreScan Solutions Customer ID:... 1042 · General Che...

8722 12/01/2023 Document Re... 62097 · Document R... -150.00

TOTAL -150.00

3422 12/07/2023 Stanley J. Richards... 1042 · General Che...

Oct 2023 HI Reimb 10/01/2023 October 1 - 3... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -851.18
Nov 2023 HI Reimb 11/01/2023 November 1 - ... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -851.18
Dec 2023 HI Reimb 12/01/2023 December 1 - ... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -851.18

TOTAL -2,553.54

3423 12/07/2023 The Village Shoppe 1042 · General Che...

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 2

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 70 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

169011 11/20/2023 Park Enhance... 650918 · Park Enha... -350.12

TOTAL -350.12

3424 12/07/2023 Water Testing Labs 3rd Qtr. 2023 1042 · General Che...

PW-4611 12/01/2023 Water Testing... 69045 · Water Testing -1,598.00

TOTAL -1,598.00

3425 12/07/2023 Winzer Cust. No. 231... 1042 · General Che...

1627048 11/14/2023 Shoppro Mec... 65069 · Small Tools -45.50

TOTAL -45.50

3426 12/07/2023 Xerox Financial Se... Contract #:  ... 1042 · General Che...

5011597 11/10/2023 Xerox Copier /... 64053 · Police Offic... -208.19

TOTAL -208.19

3427 12/12/2023 Commissioners Payroll PP D... 1042 · General Che...

PR 12152023 12/12/2023 Payroll PP De... 1043 · Payroll Chec... -57,053.81

TOTAL -57,053.81

3428 12/12/2023 Mission Square 30... Acct.#  305226 1042 · General Che...

Acct.#  305226 24801 · Mission Squ... -800.00

TOTAL -800.00

3429 12/12/2023 Mission Square 10... pp 11-28-23 -... 1042 · General Che...

Pay Date 12-15-2... 12/15/2023 pp 11-28-23 - ... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -475.38

TOTAL -475.38

3430 12/13/2023 APG Media of Ches... Acct. No. 131 1042 · General Che...

3041194 12/06/2023 PZ Notice / Is... 63053 · P/Z Advertis... -43.75

TOTAL -43.75

3431 12/13/2023 At the Scene Cleaning To... 1042 · General Che...

397686 12/08/2023 Police Janitorial 64052 · Police Janit... -100.00
Admin. Janito... 62092 · Admin Janit... -95.00

TOTAL -195.00

3432 12/13/2023 Bartlett Tree Experts 1042 · General Che...

41408069-0 11/25/2023 Pruning on E. ... 6505 · Tree Planting... -976.00

TOTAL -976.00

3433 12/13/2023 BayLand Consulta... Flood Mitigat... 1042 · General Che...

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 3

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 71 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

844401-010 11/22/2023 Flood Mitigati... 700492 · Flood Mitig... -10,968.75

TOTAL -10,968.75

3434 12/13/2023 Breezeline 1042 · General Che...

410-745-0000 12/01/2023 Water Dept. T... 69048 · Water Telep... -159.91

TOTAL -159.91

3435 12/13/2023 Chesapeake Emplo... Policy #:  219... 1042 · General Che...

Dec 2023 12/03/2023 Admin. Work... 620115 · Admin Wor... -81.49
PZ Workmen... 63015 · PZ Workma... -426.06
PD Workmen... 64015 · Police Work... -4,551.03
PW Workmen... 65015 · PW Workm... -1,772.42

TOTAL -6,831.00

3436 12/13/2023 CJ Weisman Balan... 1042 · General Che...

Reimb. HI Dec 2023 12/01/2023 Reimb. HI Ex... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -699.96
Reimb. HI Ex... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -164.90
Reimb Prescri... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -35.65

Reimb. HI Jan 2024 12/31/2023 Reimb. HI Ex... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -699.96
Reimb. HI Ex... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -307.98
Reimb Prescri... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -35.65

TOTAL -1,944.10

3437 12/13/2023 Core & Main LP 1042 · General Che...

T931788 11/20/2023 Water Meter ... 69051 · Water Mater... -1,039.43
S064733 11/21/2023 Water Dept. ... 69074 · Water Meter... -4,770.00
T992668 11/22/2023 Water Dept. ... 69074 · Water Meter... -7,730.00
U001543 11/22/2023 Water Dept. ... 69074 · Water Meter... -3,300.57

TOTAL -16,840.00

3438 12/13/2023 Doggie Walk Bags Customer #: ... 1042 · General Che...

0110623-IN 11/27/2023 Nature Trail M... 650916 · Nature Trai... -500.00

TOTAL -500.00

3439 12/13/2023 Dr. Jack Leeb St. Michaels ... 1042 · General Che...

3285 11/29/2023 Police Person... 64042 · Police Pers... -515.00

TOTAL -515.00

3440 12/13/2023 Galls, LLC 1042 · General Che...

026347191 11/24/2023 Officer Newco... 64043 · Police Unifo... -11.98
026365315 11/27/2023 Officer Nepert 64045 · Police Equip... -42.95
026362437 11/27/2023 Officer Nepert 64043 · Police Unifo... -796.84

TOTAL -851.77

3441 12/13/2023 GEORGE, MILES &... West Harbor ... 1042 · General Che...

0079499 12/07/2023 West Harbor ... 700300 · Flood Mitig... -4,024.00

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 4

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 72 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -4,024.00

3442 12/13/2023 Hopkins Sales 14820 1042 · General Che...

473103 11/22/2023 Hand soap/To... 62096 · Municipal Bl... -210.20

TOTAL -210.20

3443 12/13/2023 Intercoastal Tradin... 1042 · General Che...

234606 11/22/2023 Hypochlorite ... 69051 · Water Mater... -963.75
234607 11/22/2023 Hypochlorite ... 69051 · Water Mater... -963.75

TOTAL -1,927.50

3444 12/13/2023 International Comp... 1042 · General Che...

40100 10/19/2023 1 Year Meraki... 62101 · IT Consultant -245.00
40584 12/06/2023 IT Consultant ... 62101 · IT Consultant -2,708.20

TOTAL -2,953.20

3445 12/13/2023 Lowe's Acct.#:  821 3... 1042 · General Che...

Statement 12/22/2023 Parks & Recs... 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -27.32
KB Pwer Tool... 65069 · Small Tools -246.85
50 lb Asphalt 65083 · Streets Mai... -102.95

TOTAL -377.12

3446 12/13/2023 Maryland Rural Wa... 2023 -2024 M... 1042 · General Che...

10464 10/03/2023 Water Dept. ... 69047 · Water Dues... -300.00

TOTAL -300.00

3447 12/13/2023 MD Environmental ... Bulk Trash 1042 · General Che...

335675 12/04/2023 Bulk Trash 65071 · Landfill Fees -116.07

TOTAL -116.07

3448 12/13/2023 MD State Retireme... 1042 · General Che...

8675 12/01/2023 MD State Reti... 640131 · Retirement -174,677.00

TOTAL -174,677.00

3449 12/13/2023 One Call Acct.#:  0000... 1042 · General Che...

3116054 11/30/2023 Miss Utility 69053 · Water Misc... -21.10

TOTAL -21.10

3450 12/13/2023 Phyllis Kennedy. Reimburse f... 1042 · General Che...

2023 Christmas 12/01/2023 Reimburse for... 650918 · Park Enha... -341.39

TOTAL -341.39

3451 12/13/2023 PNC Bank Acct. ending ... 1042 · General Che...

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 5

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 73 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Statement 12/01/2023 Tourism / Con... 6203 · Tourism/Com... -145.00
Tourism / Ado... 6203 · Tourism/Com... -63.59
Admin. Dues ... 62089 · Admin Dues... -21.19

TOTAL -229.78

3452 12/13/2023 Republic Services Acct.#:  3-04... 1042 · General Che...

0426-001057264 11/30/2023 Recycling Ser... 65074 · Recycling S... -5,060.00
Trash Pick-Up 65076 · Trash Pick-Up -11,075.50

TOTAL -16,135.50

3453 12/13/2023 Staples 1042 · General Che...

3553540058 11/30/2023 Admin. Office ... 62102 · Office Suppl... -139.02
3553540059 11/30/2023 Admin. Office ... 62102 · Office Suppl... -39.99
3553540061 11/30/2023 Admin. Office ... 62102 · Office Suppl... -344.85
3553540063 11/30/2023 Admin. Office ... 62102 · Office Suppl... -269.99

TOTAL -793.85

3454 12/13/2023 Total Home Perfor... 25% Deposit 1042 · General Che...

Est No 23340 11/20/2023 Mold Remedit... 62096 · Municipal Bl... -925.00

TOTAL -925.00

3455 12/13/2023 United Healthcare I... Membership ... 1042 · General Che...

Edgar L Thomas HI 12/01/2023 Retiree Benefi... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -330.75

TOTAL -330.75

3456 12/13/2023 Visa 1042 · General Che...

Statement / SMPD 12/01/2023 SMPD Office ... 62094 · Admin Offic... -40.00
Police Trainin... 64051 · Police Trave... -800.00
SMPD Office ... 64053 · Police Offic... -56.96
Police Trainin... 64051 · Police Trave... -450.00

TOTAL -1,346.96

3457 12/13/2023 Well Care Acct.#:  2370... 1042 · General Che...

Edgar L. Thomas ... 12/01/2023 Retiree Benefi... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -71.30

TOTAL -71.30

3458 12/13/2023 Xerox Financial Se... Contract #:  ... 1042 · General Che...

5138353 12/10/2023 Xerox Copier /... 62099 · Copier / Pos... -650.35

TOTAL -650.35

3462 12/13/2023 Breezeline Acct.#:  8335 ... 1042 · General Che...

Boy Scout Lodge 12/02/2023 Internet / Boy ... 62100 · Internet -223.66

TOTAL -223.66

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 6

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 74 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

3463 12/13/2023 MD State Retireme... Location:  85... 1042 · General Che...

8674 12/01/2023 PZ -  FY23 M... 630131 · Retirement -19,221.05
Admin -  FY2... 6201131 · Retirement -22,327.97
Public Works ... 650131 · Retirement -27,984.72
COSM - FY23... 610021 · Retirement -452.26

TOTAL -69,986.00

3464 12/13/2023 Visa Acct. #:  4009... 1042 · General Che...

Statement 12-1-2... 12/01/2023 Codification E... 62093 · Codification ... -72.75
Indeed - Adve... 62090 · Admin Notic... -16.96
Indeed - Adve... 62089 · Admin Dues... -23.17
Intuit Payroll 62089 · Admin Dues... -650.00
Business Car... 62102 · Office Suppl... -32.85
Signs for New... 62102 · Office Suppl... -30.24
Mail Package 62099 · Copier / Pos... -32.30
Office Supplies 62102 · Office Suppl... -61.02
Business Car... 62102 · Office Suppl... -31.79
Business Car... 62102 · Office Suppl... -27.55

TOTAL -978.63

3465 12/13/2023 Mahan Rykiel Asso... Professional ... 1042 · General Che...

47383 11/20/2023 Professional ... 62080 · Consulting ... -27,673.78

TOTAL -27,673.78

3466 12/20/2023 At the Scene 1042 · General Che...

848006 12/15/2023 Police Janitorial 64052 · Police Janit... -100.00
Admin. Janito... 62092 · Admin Janit... -30.00

TOTAL -130.00

3467 12/20/2023 BayLand Consulta... 1042 · General Che...

844401-012Final 12/15/2023 Flood Mitigati... 700492 · Flood Mitig... -750.00
844401-011 01/04/2024 Flood Mitigati... 700492 · Flood Mitig... -3,000.00

TOTAL -3,750.00

3468 12/20/2023 Breezeline Acct.#:  8335 ... 1042 · General Che...

100 Fremont - dec 12/04/2023 Police Dept. T... 64049 · Police Telep... -350.66

TOTAL -350.66

3469 12/20/2023 Choptank Electric 1042 · General Che...

November 2023 12/13/2023 602 Railroad ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -22.00
100 Perry Ca... 65088 · Electric- Str... -150.00
Hollis Park/30... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -201.00
Skate Board ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -27.00
Mill St. Parkn... 65088 · Electric- Str... -226.00
712 N. Talbot ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -160.00
105 Brooks L... 65088 · Electric- Str... -52.00

TOTAL -838.00

3470 12/20/2023 Galls, LLC Officer Sica 1042 · General Che...

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 7

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 75 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

026534064 12/13/2023 Officer Sica 64043 · Police Unifo... -14.40

TOTAL -14.40

3471 12/20/2023 GEORGE, MILES &... West Harbor ... 1042 · General Che...

0079731 12/20/2023 West Harbor ... 700300 · Flood Mitig... -3,908.00

TOTAL -3,908.00

3472 12/20/2023 Kelly & Associates Acct. ID: 82110 1042 · General Che...

Jan 2024 coverage 12/05/2023 Admin. Benefi... 620113 · Benefits -6,926.84
PZ Benefits / ... 63013 · Benefits -1,987.87
Police Dept. B... 64013 · Benefits -5,169.83
Water Dept. B... 69013 · Benefits -2,851.88
PW Dept. Be... 65013 · Benefits -4,108.90
Admin. / Pape... 620113 · Benefits -27.60
PZ / Paper Bil... 63013 · Benefits -27.60
Police Dept. / ... 64013 · Benefits -27.60
Water Dept. / ... 69013 · Benefits -27.60
PW / Paper Bi... 65013 · Benefits -27.60

TOTAL -21,183.32

3473 12/20/2023 MD Board of Water... Water Treat... 1042 · General Che...

Operator Exam-BT 12/06/2023 Application for... 69046 · Water Trave... -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

3474 12/20/2023 MDIA 1042 · General Che...

850321 12/06/2023 Final/Approve... 63052 · P/Z Inspecti... -80.00
850477 12/13/2023 Footing/Defec... 63052 · P/Z Inspecti... -300.00
850525 12/14/2023 Final/Approve... 63052 · P/Z Inspecti... -80.00

TOTAL -460.00

3475 12/20/2023 MGL Printing Solut... Water Bill 4-... 1042 · General Che...

199574 08/23/2023 Water Bill 4-u... 69041 · Water Offic... -600.00

TOTAL -600.00

3476 12/20/2023 Pep-up 145450-1 1042 · General Che...

6662312 12/14/2023 Municipal Bld... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -560.93

TOTAL -560.93

3477 12/20/2023 Phyllis Kennedy. Reimburse f... 1042 · General Che...

2023 Christmas 2nd 12/13/2023 Reimburse for... 650918 · Park Enha... -879.89

TOTAL -879.89

3478 12/20/2023 United Healthcare I... Membership ... 1042 · General Che...

Edgar L Thomas HI 12/31/2023 Retiree Benefi... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -330.75

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 8

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 76 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -330.75

3479 12/20/2023 Verizon Wireless Acct.#:  7422... 1042 · General Che...

9951320865 12/09/2023 PW Cell Phon... 65067 · M/G Teleph... -94.88
Code Enforce... 63051 · P/Z Office E... -84.78

TOTAL -179.66

3480 12/20/2023 MD Board of Water... Water Treat... 1042 · General Che...

Operator Exam-B... 12/06/2023 Application for... 69046 · Water Trave... -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

3481 12/26/2023 Commissioners Payroll PP D... 1042 · General Che...

PR 12292023 12/26/2023 Payroll PP De... 1043 · Payroll Chec... -57,297.17

TOTAL -57,297.17

3482 12/26/2023 Mission Square 30... Acct.#  305226 1042 · General Che...

Acct.#  305226 24801 · Mission Squ... -800.00

TOTAL -800.00

3483 12/26/2023 Mission Square 10... pp 12-12-23 -... 1042 · General Che...

Pay Date 12-29-2... 12/26/2023 pp 12-12-23 - ... 6202 · Retirees Ben... -475.38

TOTAL -475.38

3484 12/27/2023 Choptank Electric 1042 · General Che...

11/9-12/9/2023 12/19/2023 Acct. # 21868... 65088 · Electric- Str... -22.00
Acct # 21847... 65088 · Electric- Str... -35.00
Acct # 21848... 69044 · Electric-Wel... -838.00
Acct.#  99135... 65088 · Electric- Str... -22.00
Acct# 218506... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -33.00
Acct# 221850... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -170.00

TOTAL -1,120.00

3485 12/27/2023 Verizon Acct.#:  650-... 1042 · General Che...

410-745-5147 12/06/2023 MG Telephone 65067 · M/G Teleph... -137.85
Water Dept. T... 69048 · Water Telep... -137.85

TOTAL -275.70

3486 12/27/2023 APG Media of Ches... Acct. No. 131 1042 · General Che...

3042292 12/21/2023 PZ Notice / Is... 63053 · P/Z Advertis... -52.50

TOTAL -52.50

3487 12/27/2023 At the Scene Cleaning To... 1042 · General Che...

848024 12/22/2023 Police Janitorial 64052 · Police Janit... -100.00
Admin. Janito... 62092 · Admin Janit... -95.00

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 9

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 77 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -195.00

3488 12/27/2023 Bartlett Tree Experts Apply Boost ... 1042 · General Che...

41393388-0 12/05/2023 Apply Boost C... 6505 · Tree Planting... -2,326.00

TOTAL -2,326.00

3489 12/27/2023 Breezeline Acct.#:  8335 ... 1042 · General Che...

410-745-9535 12/16/2023 Admin. Internet 62100 · Internet -270.51

TOTAL -270.51

3490 12/27/2023 Choptank Electric 1042 · General Che...

11/11-12/11/2023 12/21/2023 Boy Scout Lo... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -84.00
Water St., St. ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -45.00
109 S. Talbot ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -31.00
105 Gloria Av... 69044 · Electric-Wel... -1,368.00
St. Mary's Sq.... 65088 · Electric- Str... -24.00
Muskrat Park ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -96.00
Lease Lights ... 65088 · Electric- Str... -3,588.00
South Tank 1... 69044 · Electric-Wel... -43.00
Public Restro... 65088 · Electric- Str... -199.00
SM Police De... 64041 · Police Utilities -410.00
109 Gloria Av... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -192.00
115 Fremont ... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -277.00

TOTAL -6,357.00

3491 12/27/2023 Core & Main LP Training 1042 · General Che...

U059283 12/06/2023 Training Nept... 69074 · Water Meter... -1,000.00

TOTAL -1,000.00

3492 12/27/2023 Dover Plumbing S... Poly Pipe 1042 · General Che...

178342 11/25/2023 Poly Pipe 69051 · Water Mater... -270.00

TOTAL -270.00

3493 12/27/2023 Galls, LLC 1042 · General Che...

025866159 10/04/2023 Officer Taylor 64043 · Police Unifo... -24.50
025917704 10/10/2023 Officer Newco... 64043 · Police Unifo... -22.54
026437926 12/04/2023 Officer Nepert 64043 · Police Unifo... -66.30

TOTAL -113.34

3494 12/27/2023 L.N. Curtis and Sons Uniform - Ne... 1042 · General Che...

756856 10/19/2023 Police Unifor... 64043 · Police Unifo... -20.45

TOTAL -20.45

3495 12/27/2023 MD Environmental ... Bulk Trash 1042 · General Che...

335741 12/18/2023 Bulk Trash 65071 · Landfill Fees -414.99

TOTAL -414.99

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 10

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 78 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

3496 12/27/2023 Mid-Atlantic Waste Check over p... 1042 · General Che...

SWO005400-1 12/08/2023 Check over pl... 65087 · Streets Vehi... -839.64

TOTAL -839.64

3497 12/27/2023 Montgomery Irrigat... 1042 · General Che...

146077519 12/08/2023 Winterization ... 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -160.00
146077296 12/08/2023 Winterization ... 650912 · Parks/Rec ... -158.00

TOTAL -318.00

3498 12/27/2023 My Parking Sign Signs 1042 · General Che...

MPS-827568 12/07/2023 Signs 65081 · Signs -386.42

TOTAL -386.42

3499 12/27/2023 Pep-up 145450-1 1042 · General Che...

6635003 12/08/2023 PW Vehicle E... 65021 · PW Vehicle ... -344.21
Parks & Rec. ... 650913 · Parks/Rec ... -344.21
Streets Vehicl... 65087 · Streets Vehi... -344.20
SW Vehicle E... 65073 · S/W Vehicle... -344.20

TOTAL -1,376.82

3500 12/27/2023 Poore House SMPD Letter... 1042 · General Che...

12260A 07/10/2023 SMPD Letterh... 64053 · Police Offic... -180.00

TOTAL -180.00

3501 12/27/2023 RAUCH, Inc. 1042 · General Che...

6203 12/06/2023 West Harbor ... 63040 · Consulting / ... -1,080.00

TOTAL -1,080.00

3502 12/27/2023 Sharp Water Cullig... 1042 · General Che...

20557883 12/01/2023 Police Dept. ... 64053 · Police Offic... -18.00
20564600 12/07/2023 Police Dept. ... 64053 · Police Offic... -53.47

TOTAL -71.47

3503 12/27/2023 Suburban Propane Gloria Ave. P... 1042 · General Che...

1136-597890 12/21/2023 Propane 109 ... 62095 · Municipal Bl... -1,187.21

TOTAL -1,187.21

3504 12/27/2023 Verizon Acct.# 850-38... 1042 · General Che...

410-745-9500 12/06/2023 Police Dept. T... 64049 · Police Telep... -628.48

TOTAL -628.48

3505 12/27/2023 Verizon Wireless Acct.#:  7422... 1042 · General Che...

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 11

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 79 of 257



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

9951320864 12/09/2023 Police Dept. T... 64049 · Police Telep... -713.76

TOTAL -713.76

3506 12/27/2023 Crystal Springs Customer Ac... 1042 · General Che...

22652145 12/21/2023 Water / 300 M... 62102 · Office Suppl... -33.55

TOTAL -33.55

3507 12/27/2023 Xerox Financial Se... Contract #:  ... 1042 · General Che...

5135352 12/10/2023 Xerox Copier /... 64053 · Police Offic... -192.07

TOTAL -192.07

2:00 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Monthly Disbursements-General Account

December 2023

Page 12

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 80 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
4960 · Proceeds from Sale of Assett 981,284.22
4001 · Taxes Receipts

40011 · Real Estate Taxes 1,605,844.22 1,480,872.00 124,972.22 108.4%

4002 · Taxes- Other
40021 · Local Income Tax 145,411.13 225,000.00 (79,588.87) 64.6%
40022 · Accomodation Tax 357,174.19 750,000.00 (392,825.81) 47.6%
40023 · Admissions & Amusements 77,192.35 150,000.00 (72,807.65) 51.5%
40024 · Highway Use Tax 10,608.57 102,000.00 (91,391.43) 10.4%

Total 4002 · Taxes- Other 590,386.24 1,227,000.00 (636,613.76) 48.1%

40048 · Pymnt in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) 0.00
4012 · Property Taxes

40121 · Personal Property- Utilities 41,651.52 69,000.00 (27,348.48) 60.4%
40123 · Taxes- Int.,Disc.,Allow,net,etc (12,288.04) 1,000.00 (13,288.04) (1,228.8)%
40124 · Taxes- additions and abatements 17,384.77
40125 · Financial Corp. Tax 1,123.00 1,123.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 4012 · Property Taxes 47,871.25 71,123.00 (23,251.75) 67.3%

Total 4001 · Taxes Receipts 2,244,101.71 2,778,995.00 (534,893.29) 80.8%

4003 · Licenses and Permits
40039 · Inspection Fees 0.00 44,000.00 (44,000.00) 0.0%
40038 · Special Event Fee 7,300.00 16,000.00 (8,700.00) 45.6%
40031 · Board of Appeals 150.00 1,200.00 (1,050.00) 12.5%
40032 · Other Licenses & Permits 2,230.00 2,000.00 230.00 111.5%
40033 · Land Use Management Fees 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%
40034 · HDC Permits 1,450.00 2,000.00 (550.00) 72.5%
40035 · Building Permits 7,630.20 5,700.00 1,930.20 133.9%
40036 · Animal Licenses 35.00 30.00 5.00 116.7%
40037 · Business/Traders Licenses 264.00 3,000.00 (2,736.00) 8.8%

Total 4003 · Licenses and Permits 19,659.20 74,930.00 (55,270.80) 26.2%

4004 · Grants/Revenue from other Agenc
400501 · Canton Street Road (Extension of Canton Street) 88,000.00
400426 · MDOT Grant / Nature Trail Ext. 920.00 28,000.00 (27,080.00) 3.3%
400427 · Flood Mitigation Study NH Rd. 16,911.40 60,000.00 (43,088.60) 28.2%
400428 · Flood Mitigation Study /SD Cr. 15,744.75 44,850.00 (29,105.25) 35.1%
40040 · Water Department Overhead 0.00 96,900.00 (96,900.00) 0.0%
40041 · State Fire, Rescue & Amb. Fnd. 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
400413 · SMPD SMYLE Donations 8,578.00 15,000.00 (6,422.00) 57.2%
40044 · Critical Area Grant 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.0%
40046 · Police Protection State 19,579.00 55,256.00 (35,677.00) 35.4%
40047 · Crossing Guard/Talbot County 20,000.00 18,500.00 1,500.00 108.1%
40049 · FEMA Grant/ Stormwater Mitigati 4,214.50 210,000.00 (205,785.50) 2.0%

Total 4004 · Grants/Revenue from other Agenc 173,947.65 536,006.00 (362,058.35) 32.5%

4005 · Franchise and Rental Revenue
400511 · Boat Slip LIST Fee 980.00 1,850.00 (870.00) 53.0%
40051 · Boat Slip Rent 26,560.00 27,920.00 (1,360.00) 95.1%
40053 · T-Mobile Tower Rent 17,343.29 37,404.00 (20,060.71) 46.4%
40054 · AT&T Tower Rent 18,336.16 55,008.00 (36,671.84) 33.3%
40056 · Verizon- Tower Rent 17,753.76 51,213.00 (33,459.24) 34.7%
40057 · Atlantic Broadband Cable Fee 6,532.00 26,733.00 (20,201.00) 24.4%

Total 4005 · Franchise and Rental Revenue 87,505.21 200,128.00 (112,622.79) 43.7%

4006 · Interest (Revenue from investments in cash, securities, and proper...
40063 · Interest  Income Due to Gen.Fun 704.00
400611 · Interest- Repair&Replacement Fd 126,030.68 100,000.00 26,030.68 126.0%
400612 · Interest- Capital Projects Fd 6,100.47 15,000.00 (8,899.53) 40.7%
400613 · Interest- General Investment Fd 102,208.23 100,000.00 2,208.23 102.2%
400615 · Interest - Contingency Fund 9,791.38 8,000.00 1,791.38 122.4%
400616 · Interest - Am. Res. Plan Inv. 1,734.12

Total 4006 · Interest (Revenue from investments in cash, securities, and ... 246,568.88 223,000.00 23,568.88 110.6%

40062 · Other Interest 33.21
4007 · Fines

40071 · Parking and Civil Violations 1,640.00 6,000.00 (4,360.00) 27.3%
40073 · PZ - Fines and Violations 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 0.0%
40074 · Speed Cameras 33,468.46

Total 4007 · Fines 35,108.46 6,100.00 29,008.46 575.5%

4009 · Other Revenues

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 81 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

400901 · Kayak Rental Space 35.00 1,400.00 (1,365.00) 2.5%
40091 · Copies, CDs, Misc. 0.00
400911 · Miscellaneous Income 3,325.00 3,000.00 325.00 110.8%
400913 · War of 1812 Book Sales 110.00
40095 · Health Officer Charges 285.00
40096 · Police Dept. Misc. (185.00) 1,000.00 (1,185.00) (18.5)%

Total 4009 · Other Revenues 3,570.00 5,400.00 (1,830.00) 66.1%

40099 · Reimbursed Expenses-Income
400992 · Reimbursed Advertising 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

400995 · Reimbursed Engineering 360.00 3,000.00 (2,640.00) 12.0%
400999 · Reimbursed Expense- Other 4,683.01 8,000.00 (3,316.99) 58.5%

Total 40099 · Reimbursed Expenses-Income 5,043.01 12,000.00 (6,956.99) 42.0%

4400 · Water Funding
4412 · Transf. from Water Inv. Fund 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
4401 · Water Capital Charges (1,100.00) 3,300.00 (4,400.00) (33.3)%
4402 · Water Connections (2,200.00) 6,600.00 (8,800.00) (33.3)%
4403 · Water Services 331,367.82 646,000.00 (314,632.18) 51.3%
4404 · Interest- Water Fund 4,592.38 4,400.00 192.38 104.4%
4407 · Misc Water Reimbursements 1,621.31
4409 · American RP Funds/Water Meters 0.00 250,548.00 (250,548.00) 0.0%
4410 · Water Lease 49,737.50

Total 4400 · Water Funding 384,019.01 935,848.00 (551,828.99) 41.0%

4500 · Capital Fund
4501 · Capital Funding

45009 · Transf from Capital Inv. Hybrid 0.00 40,000.00 (40,000.00) 0.0%

Total 4501 · Capital Funding 0.00 40,000.00 (40,000.00) 0.0%

4502 · Repair & Replacement Funding
450291 · N. Fremont St. Mill & Overlay 0.00 30,000.00 (30,000.00) 0.0%
45029 · Mill St. Bathroom Renovation 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

Total 4502 · Repair & Replacement Funding 0.00 40,000.00 (40,000.00) 0.0%

Total 4500 · Capital Fund 0.00 80,000.00 (80,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 4,180,840.56 4,852,407.00 (671,566.44) 86.2%

Gross Profit 4,180,840.56 4,852,407.00 (671,566.44) 86.2%

Expense
999 · Transfers 309,547.06
6000 · Gen'l Operational Disbursemen

6001 · Payroll Tax Expense (27.24)
6100 · COSM Expenses

610021 · Retirement 452.26 296.00 156.26 152.8%
61001 · Regular Salaries- COSM 9,777.17 20,000.00 (10,222.83) 48.9%
61002 · Benefits- COSM 934.33 1,890.00 (955.67) 49.4%
61003 · Other Expenses- COSM

610031 · MML Convention- COSM (712.86) 5,000.00 (5,712.86) (14.3)%
610032 · Dues- COSM 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
610033 · Other meetings, expenses- COSM 70.00 2,500.00 (2,430.00) 2.8%
610034 · Other Expenses-ESAM 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
610035 · COSM Electronic Allowance 2,804.76 3,500.00 (695.24) 80.1%

Total 61003 · Other Expenses- COSM 2,161.90 12,500.00 (10,338.10) 17.3%

Total 6100 · COSM Expenses 13,325.66 34,686.00 (21,360.34) 38.4%

6200 · Administrative Expenses
6201 · Net Total Employment

62011 · Employment
6201131 · Retirement 22,327.97 24,464.00 (2,136.03) 91.3%
620110 · Salary Town Administrator 64,826.45 135,700.00 (70,873.55) 47.8%
620111 · Administrative Staff (3) 56,479.36 163,864.00 (107,384.64) 34.5%
620112 · Overtime Salaries- General 1,295.70 1,000.00 295.70 129.6%
620113 · Benefits 26,981.49 49,802.00 (22,820.51) 54.2%
620114 · PR Taxes 11,220.64 23,529.00 (12,308.36) 47.7%
620115 · Admin Workmens Comp 368.40 689.00 (320.60) 53.5%
620116 · Health Reimbursement Expense 9,985.95

Total 62011 · Employment 193,485.96 399,048.00 (205,562.04) 48.5%

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 82 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

62012 · Less Costs to Other Depts.- Gen 340.65 (28,172.00) 28,512.65 (1.2)%

Total 6201 · Net Total Employment 193,826.61 370,876.00 (177,049.39) 52.3%

6202 · Retirees Benefits 22,111.19 31,000.00 (8,888.81) 71.3%
6203 · Tourism/Communications 4,205.04 25,000.00 (20,794.96) 16.8%

6204 · Legal Expense- General 34,039.45 25,000.00 9,039.45 136.2%

6205 · Audit- General 18,000.00 19,500.00 (1,500.00) 92.3%
6206 · Engineering

62062 · Engineering Climate Ch./Sea Ris 907.42 25,000.00 (24,092.58) 3.6%
6206 · Engineering - Other 8,430.00 7,500.00 930.00 112.4%

Total 6206 · Engineering 9,337.42 32,500.00 (23,162.58) 28.7%

6207 · Liablility & Property Insurance 10,630.00 15,000.00 (4,370.00) 70.9%
6208 · Other Identified Expenses

62080 · Consulting Services Admin. 37,734.08
62081 · Bank Service Charge 614.25 1,821.00 (1,206.75) 33.7%
62082 · Real Estate Taxes 12,508.47 6,197.00 6,311.47 201.8%
62084 · Website- development & maint. 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
62085 · Volunteer Acknowledgement 0.00 200.00 (200.00) 0.0%
62086 · Election 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%
62087 · Miscellaneous 640.10 2,000.00 (1,359.90) 32.0%
62088 · Admin Telephone 1,810.35 3,960.00 (2,149.65) 45.7%

62089 · Admin Dues & Subscriptions 5,524.74 7,000.00 (1,475.26) 78.9%
62090 · Admin Notices & Ads 4,014.65 6,500.00 (2,485.35) 61.8%
62091 · Admin Travel / Training 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
62092 · Admin Janitorial 1,625.00 3,500.00 (1,875.00) 46.4%
62093 · Codification Maintenance 1,025.16 5,000.00 (3,974.84) 20.5%
62094 · Admin Office Expenses 621.75
62095 · Municipal Bldgs. Utiilities 10,061.08 18,000.00 (7,938.92) 55.9%
62096 · Municipal Bldgs- Maint. & Suppl 12,238.03 15,000.00 (2,761.97) 81.6%
62097 · Document Retention 1,245.00 2,500.00 (1,255.00) 49.8%
62099 · Copier / Postage 4,784.93 8,000.00 (3,215.07) 59.8%
62100 · Internet 2,965.02 3,500.00 (534.98) 84.7%
62101 · IT Consultant 21,354.34 25,000.00 (3,645.66) 85.4%
62102 · Office Supplies 10,316.33 3,500.00 6,816.33 294.8%
62103 · HVAC/Electrical/Plumbing Repair 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%
62105 · Storage Unit 810.00 1,500.00 (690.00) 54.0%
62106 · Supplies 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6208 · Other Identified Expenses 129,893.28 156,678.00 (26,784.72) 82.9%

Total 6200 · Administrative Expenses 422,042.99 675,554.00 (253,511.01) 62.5%

6300 · Planning & Zoning
6301 · Total Employment

630131 · Retirement 19,221.05
63011 · Regular Salaries 71,904.74 169,133.00 (97,228.26) 42.5%
63012 · Overtime 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
63013 · Benefits 8,639.19 39,070.00 (30,430.81) 22.1%
63014 · PR Taxes 5,434.46 13,398.00 (7,963.54) 40.6%
63015 · PZ Workmans Comp 2,237.31 8,457.00 (6,219.69) 26.5%

Total 6301 · Total Employment 107,436.75 231,058.00 (123,621.25) 46.5%

6302 · PZ Legal
63021 · Legal, BOZA 27.50 6,000.00 (5,972.50) 0.5%
63022 · Legal, P&Z Issues 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6302 · PZ Legal 27.50 9,000.00 (8,972.50) 0.3%

6304 · Consulting
63040 · Consulting / PZ 1,080.00 5,000.00 (3,920.00) 21.6%
63043 · Consulting New Town Office (10,000.00)
63044 · PZ Consulting - Drafting/Survey 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6304 · Consulting (8,920.00) 10,000.00 (18,920.00) (89.2)%

6305 · Other Expenses
63051 · P/Z Office Expense 1,174.38 8,000.00 (6,825.62) 14.7%
63052 · P/Z Inspections 3,769.20 44,000.00 (40,230.80) 8.6%
63053 · P/Z Advertising 1,286.25 5,000.00 (3,713.75) 25.7%
63054 · PZ / Travel & Training 0.00 3,800.00 (3,800.00) 0.0%
63055 · Technical / Equipment 2,665.53 2,460.00 205.53 108.4%

Total 6305 · Other Expenses 8,895.36 63,260.00 (54,364.64) 14.1%

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 3

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 83 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6306 · Reimbursable Expenses
63069 · Misc. Reimbursable Expenses 880.99

Total 6306 · Reimbursable Expenses 880.99

Total 6300 · Planning & Zoning 108,320.60 313,318.00 (204,997.40) 34.6%

6400 · Police
64000 · SMYLE Expenses 8,004.75 15,000.00 (6,995.25) 53.4%
6401 · Employment

640131 · Retirement 174,677.00
64011 · Sworn Officers

640108 · Salary - Chief 51,328.83 105,000.00 (53,671.17) 48.9%
640111 · Regular Salaries / PFC & Patrol 204,109.39 484,536.00 (280,426.61) 42.1%
640112 · Overtime Officers 24,910.33 48,223.00 (23,312.67) 51.7%

Total 64011 · Sworn Officers 280,348.55 637,759.00 (357,410.45) 44.0%

64012 · Other Salaries
640124 · Crossing Guard OT 260.40
640121 · Admininstrative Assistant - PD 21,906.86 44,990.00 (23,083.14) 48.7%
640122 · Overtime Other 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
640123 · Crossing Guards 7,249.20 18,500.00 (11,250.80) 39.2%

Total 64012 · Other Salaries 29,416.46 63,990.00 (34,573.54) 46.0%

64013 · Benefits 33,167.74 299,978.00 (266,810.26) 11.1%
64014 · PR Taxes 23,428.38 50,553.00 (27,124.62) 46.3%
64015 · Police Workmans Comp 23,899.61 37,493.00 (13,593.39) 63.7%

Total 6401 · Employment 564,937.74 1,089,773.00 (524,835.26) 51.8%

6402 · Consulting- Police
64022 · Legal- Police 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.0%

Total 6402 · Consulting- Police 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.0%

6403 · Liability & Property Insurance 14,120.00 15,000.00 (880.00) 94.1%
6404 · Other Identified Expenses

64061 · "MAX" Retirement Pay 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
64058 · Speed Camera Money/ Usage 4,763.44
64041 · Police Utilities 2,320.00 5,608.00 (3,288.00) 41.4%
64042 · Police Personnel Testing 1,717.75 3,000.00 (1,282.25) 57.3%
64043 · Police Uniforms 2,077.83 8,000.00 (5,922.17) 26.0%
64044 · Communications (radio) 4,477.61 4,500.00 (22.39) 99.5%
64045 · Police Equipment & Supplies 1,376.53 7,800.00 (6,423.47) 17.6%
64046 · Police Vehicle Expense

64046A · Police Vehicle Fuel(Cars) 5,771.46
64046 · Police Vehicle Expense - Other 4,545.99 40,000.00 (35,454.01) 11.4%

Total 64046 · Police Vehicle Expense 10,317.45 40,000.00 (29,682.55) 25.8%

64049 · Police Telephone 9,757.18 22,000.00 (12,242.82) 44.4%
64050 · Police Dues & Subscriptions 4,845.60 5,000.00 (154.40) 96.9%
64051 · Police Travel/Training 2,236.22 4,000.00 (1,763.78) 55.9%
64052 · Police Janitorial 2,600.00 6,000.00 (3,400.00) 43.3%
64053 · Police Office Expenses 3,067.95 7,500.00 (4,432.05) 40.9%
64054 · Security Systems (Security Systems) 0.00 1,200.00 (1,200.00) 0.0%

64056 · Generator Maintenance / SMPD 2,423.24 1,500.00 923.24 161.5%

Total 6404 · Other Identified Expenses 51,980.80 119,108.00 (67,127.20) 43.6%

Total 6400 · Police 639,043.29 1,241,381.00 (602,337.71) 51.5%

6500 · Public Works
65022 · Generator Maint. / Public Works 385.71 2,000.00 (1,614.29) 19.3%
65021 · PW Vehicle Exp. 1,425.47
65020 · PW Office Exp. 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
6501 · Employment

650131 · Retirement 27,984.72
65010 · Supervisor / Public Works 0.00 81,440.00 (81,440.00) 0.0%
65011 · Regular Salaries / Crew (5) 100,395.64 218,205.00 (117,809.36) 46.0%
65012 · Overtime 6,797.21 7,000.00 (202.79) 97.1%
65013 · Benefits 35,932.46 112,603.00 (76,670.54) 31.9%
65014 · PR Taxes 11,347.86 24,491.00 (13,143.14) 46.3%
65015 · PW Workmans Comp 9,305.68 15,407.00 (6,101.32) 60.4%
65019 · Employee Time Billed to W Dept. 0.00 (93,860.00) 93,860.00 0.0%

Total 6501 · Employment 191,763.57 365,286.00 (173,522.43) 52.5%

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 4

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 84 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6503 · Liability & Property Insurance 8,400.00 7,800.00 600.00 107.7%
6505 · Tree Planting & Maintenance

65051 · Tree Planting & Main Reim 0.00 2,100.00 (2,100.00) 0.0%
6505 · Tree Planting & Maintenance - Other 14,964.00 20,000.00 (5,036.00) 74.8%

Total 6505 · Tree Planting & Maintenance 14,964.00 22,100.00 (7,136.00) 67.7%

6506 · Maint. & Grounds
65060 · Honeymoon Bridge Wash & Seal 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.0%
65069 · Small Tools 1,683.64 4,000.00 (2,316.36) 42.1%
65063 · Mosquito Control 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.0%
65066 · M/G Miscellaneous 154.25
65067 · M/G Telephone 1,323.33 1,500.00 (176.67) 88.2%

Total 6506 · Maint. & Grounds 3,161.22 13,000.00 (9,838.78) 24.3%

6507 · Sanitation & Waste
65076 · Trash Pick-Up 55,377.50 134,000.00 (78,622.50) 41.3%
65071 · Landfill Fees 2,269.33 10,000.00 (7,730.67) 22.7%
65072 · S/W Repairs & Maintenance 41.80 2,000.00 (1,958.20) 2.1%
65073 · S/W Vehicle Expense 6,338.29 8,000.00 (1,661.71) 79.2%
65074 · Recycling Service 25,300.00 68,000.00 (42,700.00) 37.2%
65077 · Brush Disposal 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6507 · Sanitation & Waste 89,326.92 226,000.00 (136,673.08) 39.5%

6508 · Streets/Sidewalks
65081 · Signs 1,068.97 11,280.00 (10,211.03) 9.5%
65082 · Sidewalk Repair 2,429.00 4,000.00 (1,571.00) 60.7%
65083 · Streets Maintenance & Supplies 5,049.58 8,000.00 (2,950.42) 63.1%
65084 · Storm Drain Repair & Maint. 58.20 5,000.00 (4,941.80) 1.2%
65086 · Parking Lots- Repair & Maint. 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%
65087 · Streets Vehicle Expense 12,069.18 20,000.00 (7,930.82) 60.3%
65088 · Electric- Street Lights 24,816.30 48,956.00 (24,139.70) 50.7%
65089 · Alley Maintenance 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

Total 6508 · Streets/Sidewalks 45,491.23 102,736.00 (57,244.77) 44.3%

6509 · Parks & Recreation
650920 · Nature Trail Ext. / MDOT Grant 5,800.00 28,000.00 (22,200.00) 20.7%
650921 · Nature Trail Ext. / Town Match 0.00 7,000.00 (7,000.00) 0.0%
65091 · Other Expenses

650911 · Harbor Maintenance 188.05 2,500.00 (2,311.95) 7.5%
650912 · Parks/Rec Maint. & Supplies 11,706.32 20,000.00 (8,293.68) 58.5%
650913 · Parks/Rec Vehicle Maintenance 1,662.21 3,000.00 (1,337.79) 55.4%
650916 · Nature Trail Maintenance 1,948.80 5,000.00 (3,051.20) 39.0%
650918 · Park Enhancement Fund 2,208.55 10,000.00 (7,791.45) 22.1%
650919 · Horticulturist/Contract 7,878.75 30,000.00 (22,121.25) 26.3%

Total 65091 · Other Expenses 25,592.68 70,500.00 (44,907.32) 36.3%

Total 6509 · Parks & Recreation 31,392.68 105,500.00 (74,107.32) 29.8%

Total 6500 · Public Works 386,310.80 845,422.00 (459,111.20) 45.7%

6800 · Donations to Outside Agencies
6815 · SMCC Building Donation 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6812 · St. Michaels in Bloom 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6802 · Fire Deptartment 30,000.00 83,000.00 (53,000.00) 36.1%
6803 · Talbot County  Arts Council 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6804 · St. Mary's Square Museum 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6806 · Talbot County Library 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6807 · St. Michaels Comm. Center 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 100.0%
6809 · Bay Hundred Pool Donation 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 6800 · Donations to Outside Agencies 97,000.00 150,000.00 (53,000.00) 64.7%

Total 6000 · Gen'l Operational Disbursemen 1,666,016.10 3,260,361.00 (1,594,344.90) 51.1%

66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expenses) 12,926.98
6900 · Water Department Expenses

6901 · Employment
69011 · Regular Salaries 0.00
69012 · Overtime 0.00
69013 · Benefits 5,788.67

Total 6901 · Employment 5,788.67

6903 · Liability and Property Ins. 7,600.00 8,000.00 (400.00) 95.0%
6904 · Other Identified Expenses

690534 · Third Water Well & Pump Study 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 5

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 85 of 257



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

69039 · Staff Time / Water Dept. 60,786.50 122,032.00 (61,245.50) 49.8%
69040 · Water Dept. Overhead 0.00 96,900.00 (96,900.00) 0.0%
69041 · Water Office Expenses 649.48 3,500.00 (2,850.52) 18.6%
69042 · Water Computer/Telem. Software 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
69043 · Water Postage 1,300.00 1,500.00 (200.00) 86.7%
69044 · Electric-Wells & Towers 13,884.00 30,000.00 (16,116.00) 46.3%
69045 · Water Testing 2,566.00 4,800.00 (2,234.00) 53.5%
69046 · Water Travel & Training 540.20 2,500.00 (1,959.80) 21.6%
69047 · Water Dues/subscriptions 300.00 500.00 (200.00) 60.0%
69048 · Water Telephone 1,637.64 3,000.00 (1,362.36) 54.6%
69051 · Water Materials/supplies 33,953.45 55,000.00 (21,046.55) 61.7%
69052 · Maint. on Arsenic System 694.20 10,000.00 (9,305.80) 6.9%
69055 · Water Lease Percentage 49,737.50
69053 · Water Miscellaneous 336.28 1,000.00 (663.72) 33.6%
690531 · Maintenance on Generator #2 & 3 2,765.00 5,500.00 (2,735.00) 50.3%
690532 · Server Time - Mission Units 2,457.60 2,374.00 83.60 103.5%

Total 6904 · Other Identified Expenses 171,607.85 365,606.00 (193,998.15) 46.9%

6906 · Water Capital Expenses
69076 · Boat Slip Waterline 0.00 30,000.00 (30,000.00) 0.0%
69062 · Water Tower Maintenance Contrac 28,047.59 57,000.00 (28,952.41) 49.2%
69074 · Water Meter Replacements 42,729.57 250,548.00 (207,818.43) 17.1%

Total 6906 · Water Capital Expenses 70,777.16 337,548.00 (266,770.84) 21.0%

6907 · Interfund Loan-N Tower 1997 CDA 704.00 20,000.00 (19,296.00) 3.5%
6909 · 2006 Arsenic Debt Service 1,136.46 43,907.00 (42,770.54) 2.6%

Total 6900 · Water Department Expenses 257,614.14 775,061.00 (517,446.86) 33.2%

7000 · Capital Expenditures
7003 · Streets & Sidewalks

700300 · Flood Mitigation / N. Harbor Rd 33,520.40 60,000.00 (26,479.60) 55.9%
70040 · PW Hybrid Vehicle 0.00 40,000.00 (40,000.00) 0.0%

Total 7003 · Streets & Sidewalks 33,520.40 100,000.00 (66,479.60) 33.5%

7004 · Parks and Recreation
700493 · FEMA Grant SW Mitigation Proj. 0.00 210,000.00 (210,000.00) 0.0%
700492 · Flood Mitigation/San Domingo Cr 30,463.50 44,850.00 (14,386.50) 67.9%

Total 7004 · Parks and Recreation 30,463.50 254,850.00 (224,386.50) 12.0%

7006 · Municipal Bldgs. Capital Exp.
70074 · Purchase of Env. Concern Prop. 2,635,172.33

Total 7006 · Municipal Bldgs. Capital Exp. 2,635,172.33

7008 · Repair & Replacement
70091 · Mill St. Bathroom Renovation 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%
70092 · N. Fremont St. Improvement Proj 0.00 30,000.00 (30,000.00) 0.0%

Total 7008 · Repair & Replacement 0.00 40,000.00 (40,000.00) 0.0%

Total 7000 · Capital Expenditures 2,699,156.23 394,850.00 2,304,306.23 683.6%

Total Expense 4,945,260.51 4,430,272.00 514,988.51 111.6%

Net Income (764,419.95) 422,135.00 (1,186,554.95) (181.1)%

1:59 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels
01/04/24 Actual vs. Budget  2023-2024
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 6

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 86 of 257



Jul - Dec 23 Jul - Dec 22 $ Change % Change

Income
4960 · Proceeds from Sale of Assett 981,284.22 0.00 981,284.22 100.0%
4001 · Taxes Receipts

40011 · Real Estate Taxes 1,605,844.22 1,581,127.58 24,716.64 1.6%

4002 · Taxes- Other
40027 · Deferred Highway User Tax 0.00 19,407.73 -19,407.73 -100.0%
40026 · Deferred Accomodation Tax 0.00 263,829.16 -263,829.16 -100.0%
40021 · Local Income Tax 145,411.13 136,793.83 8,617.30 6.3%
40022 · Accomodation Tax 357,174.19 344,235.80 12,938.39 3.8%
40023 · Admissions & Amusements 77,192.35 91,086.07 -13,893.72 -15.3%
40024 · Highway Use Tax 10,608.57 9,018.19 1,590.38 17.6%

Total 4002 · Taxes- Other 590,386.24 864,370.78 -273,984.54 -31.7%

40048 · Pymnt in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4012 · Property Taxes

40121 · Personal Property- Utilities 41,651.52 56,232.64 -14,581.12 -25.9%
40123 · Taxes- Int.,Disc.,Allow,net,etc -12,288.04 629.51 -12,917.55 -2,052.0%
40124 · Taxes- additions and abatements 17,384.77 0.00 17,384.77 100.0%
40125 · Financial Corp. Tax 1,123.00 1,123.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 4012 · Property Taxes 47,871.25 57,985.15 -10,113.90 -17.4%

Total 4001 · Taxes Receipts 2,244,101.71 2,503,483.51 -259,381.80 -10.4%

4003 · Licenses and Permits
40038 · Special Event Fee 7,300.00 300.00 7,000.00 2,333.3%
40031 · Board of Appeals 150.00 1,059.78 -909.78 -85.9%
40032 · Other Licenses & Permits 2,230.00 1,950.00 280.00 14.4%
40033 · Land Use Management Fees 600.00 0.00 600.00 100.0%
40034 · HDC Permits 1,450.00 1,200.00 250.00 20.8%
40035 · Building Permits 7,630.20 15,034.01 -7,403.81 -49.3%
40036 · Animal Licenses 35.00 35.00 0.00 0.0%
40037 · Business/Traders Licenses 264.00 619.11 -355.11 -57.4%

Total 4003 · Licenses and Permits 19,659.20 20,197.90 -538.70 -2.7%

4004 · Grants/Revenue from other Agenc
400501 · Canton Street Road (Extension of Canton Street) 88,000.00 0.00 88,000.00 100.0%
400425 · SMPD Donation / Eugenio 0.00 13,266.00 -13,266.00 -100.0%
400426 · MDOT Grant / Nature Trail Ext. 920.00 0.00 920.00 100.0%
400427 · Flood Mitigation Study NH Rd. 16,911.40 0.00 16,911.40 100.0%
400428 · Flood Mitigation Study /SD Cr. 15,744.75 0.00 15,744.75 100.0%
400413 · SMPD SMYLE Donations 8,578.00 8,315.00 263.00 3.2%
40046 · Police Protection State 19,579.00 25,338.00 -5,759.00 -22.7%
40047 · Crossing Guard/Talbot County 20,000.00 18,500.00 1,500.00 8.1%
40049 · FEMA Grant/ Stormwater Mitigati 4,214.50 0.00 4,214.50 100.0%

Total 4004 · Grants/Revenue from other Agenc 173,947.65 65,419.00 108,528.65 165.9%

4005 · Franchise and Rental Revenue
40064 · Deferred Lease Rent 0.00 4,267.74 -4,267.74 -100.0%
400511 · Boat Slip LIST Fee 980.00 1,130.00 -150.00 -13.3%
40051 · Boat Slip Rent 26,560.00 0.00 26,560.00 100.0%
40052 · Building Rent (Long & Foster) 0.00 19,080.05 -19,080.05 -100.0%
40053 · T-Mobile Tower Rent 17,343.29 16,838.16 505.13 3.0%
40054 · AT&T Tower Rent 18,336.16 13,752.12 4,584.04 33.3%
40056 · Verizon- Tower Rent 17,753.76 21,338.70 -3,584.94 -16.8%
40057 · Atlantic Broadband Cable Fee 6,532.00 10,200.00 -3,668.00 -36.0%

Total 4005 · Franchise and Rental Revenue 87,505.21 86,606.77 898.44 1.0%

4006 · Interest (Revenue from investments in cash, securities, and property)
40063 · Interest  Income Due to Gen.Fun 704.00 888.00 -184.00 -20.7%
400611 · Interest- Repair&Replacement Fd 126,030.68 83,306.57 42,724.11 51.3%
400612 · Interest- Capital Projects Fd 6,100.47 9,790.47 -3,690.00 -37.7%
400613 · Interest- General Investment Fd 102,208.23 61,198.03 41,010.20 67.0%
400615 · Interest - Contingency Fund 9,791.38 6,113.44 3,677.94 60.2%
400616 · Interest - Am. Res. Plan Inv. 1,734.12 8,251.58 -6,517.46 -79.0%

Total 4006 · Interest (Revenue from investments in cash, securities, and property) 246,568.88 169,548.09 77,020.79 45.4%

40062 · Other Interest 33.21 16.98 16.23 95.6%
4007 · Fines

40071 · Parking and Civil Violations 1,640.00 4,120.00 -2,480.00 -60.2%
40074 · Speed Cameras 33,468.46 73,699.46 -40,231.00 -54.6%

Total 4007 · Fines 35,108.46 77,819.46 -42,711.00 -54.9%

4009 · Other Revenues
400901 · Kayak Rental Space 35.00 0.00 35.00 100.0%
40091 · Copies, CDs, Misc. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
400911 · Miscellaneous Income 2,800.00 671.57 2,128.43 316.9%
400913 · War of 1812 Book Sales 110.00 0.00 110.00 100.0%
40095 · Health Officer Charges 285.00 0.00 285.00 100.0%
40096 · Police Dept. Misc. -185.00 1,010.00 -1,195.00 -118.3%

Total 4009 · Other Revenues 3,045.00 1,681.57 1,363.43 81.1%

40099 · Reimbursed Expenses-Income
400992 · Reimbursed Advertising

400993 · Reimb. Exp. Inn at Perry Cabin 0.00 75.00 -75.00 -100.0%
400992 · Reimbursed Advertising - Other 0.00 602.41 -602.41 -100.0%

Total 400992 · Reimbursed Advertising 0.00 677.41 -677.41 -100.0%

400995 · Reimbursed Engineering 360.00 4,042.50 -3,682.50 -91.1%
400999 · Reimbursed Expense- Other 4,683.01 10,037.73 -5,354.72 -53.4%
40099 · Reimbursed Expenses-Income - Other 0.00 295.00 -295.00 -100.0%

Total 40099 · Reimbursed Expenses-Income 5,043.01 15,052.64 -10,009.63 -66.5%

4400 · Water Funding
4401 · Water Capital Charges -1,100.00 7,700.00 -8,800.00 -114.3%
4402 · Water Connections -2,200.00 6,600.00 -8,800.00 -133.3%
4403 · Water Services 331,367.82 338,175.68 -6,807.86 -2.0%
4404 · Interest- Water Fund 4,592.38 2,587.53 2,004.85 77.5%
4407 · Misc Water Reimbursements 1,621.31 1,587.04 34.27 2.2%
4409 · American RP Funds/Water Meters 0.00 514,081.77 -514,081.77 -100.0%
4410 · Water Lease 49,737.50 51,254.54 -1,517.04 -3.0%
4400 · Water Funding - Other 0.00 790.00 -790.00 -100.0%

Total 4400 · Water Funding 384,019.01 922,776.56 -538,757.55 -58.4%

Total Income 4,180,315.56 3,862,602.48 317,713.08 8.2%

Gross Profit 4,180,315.56 3,862,602.48 317,713.08 8.2%

Expense
999 · Transfers 309,547.06 0.00 309,547.06 100.0%
6000 · Gen'l Operational Disbursemen

6001 · Payroll Tax Expense 0.00 -136.02 136.02 100.0%
6100 · COSM Expenses

610021 · Retirement 452.26 435.00 17.26 4.0%
61001 · Regular Salaries- COSM 9,777.17 7,595.57 2,181.60 28.7%
61002 · Benefits- COSM 934.33 834.90 99.43 11.9%
61003 · Other Expenses- COSM

610031 · MML Convention- COSM -712.86 0.00 -712.86 -100.0%
610032 · Dues- COSM 0.00 50.00 -50.00 -100.0%
610033 · Other meetings, expenses- COSM 70.00 222.56 -152.56 -68.6%
610034 · Other Expenses-ESAM 0.00 -240.00 240.00 100.0%
610035 · COSM Electronic Allowance 2,804.76 2,545.20 259.56 10.2%
61003 · Other Expenses- COSM - Other 0.00 57.65 -57.65 -100.0%

Total 61003 · Other Expenses- COSM 2,161.90 2,635.41 -473.51 -18.0%

Total 6100 · COSM Expenses 13,325.66 11,500.88 1,824.78 15.9%

6200 · Administrative Expenses
6201 · Net Total Employment

62011 · Employment
6201131 · Retirement 22,327.97 20,666.00 1,661.97 8.0%
620110 · Salary Town Administrator 64,826.45 64,030.71 795.74 1.2%

1:58 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels

01/04/24 Profit & Loss

Accrual Basis July through December 2023

Page 1

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 87 of 257



Jul - Dec 23 Jul - Dec 22 $ Change % Change

620111 · Administrative Staff (3) 56,479.36 82,830.23 -26,350.87 -31.8%
620112 · Overtime Salaries- General 1,295.70 2,086.09 -790.39 -37.9%
620113 · Benefits 26,981.49 29,182.34 -2,200.85 -7.5%
620114 · PR Taxes 11,220.64 12,211.67 -991.03 -8.1%
620115 · Admin Workmens Comp 368.40 266.23 102.17 38.4%
620116 · Health Reimbursement Expense 9,797.53 14,265.09 -4,467.56 -31.3%
62011 · Employment - Other 0.00 -13,660.50 13,660.50 100.0%

Total 62011 · Employment 193,297.54 211,877.86 -18,580.32 -8.8%

62012 · Less Costs to Other Depts.- Gen 340.65 0.00 340.65 100.0%

Total 6201 · Net Total Employment 193,638.19 211,877.86 -18,239.67 -8.6%

6202 · Retirees Benefits 22,111.19 10,302.70 11,808.49 114.6%
6203 · Tourism/Communications 4,205.04 36,076.59 -31,871.55 -88.3%

6204 · Legal Expense- General 34,039.45 8,450.00 25,589.45 302.8%

6205 · Audit- General 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 0.0%
6206 · Engineering

62062 · Engineering Climate Ch./Sea Ris 907.42 5,592.50 -4,685.08 -83.8%
62061 · Reimbursable Engineering Expens 0.00 4,347.50 -4,347.50 -100.0%
6206 · Engineering - Other 8,430.00 1,480.00 6,950.00 469.6%

Total 6206 · Engineering 9,337.42 11,420.00 -2,082.58 -18.2%

6207 · Liablility & Property Insurance 10,630.00 9,753.00 877.00 9.0%
6208 · Other Identified Expenses

62080 · Consulting Services Admin. 37,734.08 0.00 37,734.08 100.0%
62081 · Bank Service Charge 614.25 1,123.00 -508.75 -45.3%
62082 · Real Estate Taxes 12,508.47 11,966.75 541.72 4.5%
62087 · Miscellaneous 640.10 111.78 528.32 472.6%
62088 · Admin Telephone 1,810.35 1,755.19 55.16 3.1%

62089 · Admin Dues & Subscriptions 5,524.74 5,583.74 -59.00 -1.1%
62090 · Admin Notices & Ads 4,014.65 5,775.34 -1,760.69 -30.5%
62092 · Admin Janitorial 1,625.00 1,785.00 -160.00 -9.0%
62093 · Codification Maintenance 1,025.16 811.71 213.45 26.3%
62094 · Admin Office Expenses 621.75 619.05 2.70 0.4%
62095 · Municipal Bldgs. Utiilities 8,934.20 11,607.54 -2,673.34 -23.0%
62096 · Municipal Bldgs- Maint. & Suppl 12,238.03 11,245.71 992.32 8.8%
62097 · Document Retention 1,245.00 1,395.00 -150.00 -10.8%
62099 · Copier / Postage 4,784.93 3,554.60 1,230.33 34.6%
62100 · Internet 2,965.02 1,985.04 979.98 49.4%
62101 · IT Consultant 21,354.34 23,854.23 -2,499.89 -10.5%
62102 · Office Supplies 10,316.33 9,080.71 1,235.62 13.6%
62105 · Storage Unit 810.00 804.00 6.00 0.8%

Total 6208 · Other Identified Expenses 128,766.40 93,058.39 35,708.01 38.4%

6210 · Engineering Cl.Change/SL Rise 0.00 362.50 -362.50 -100.0%

Total 6200 · Administrative Expenses 420,727.69 399,301.04 21,426.65 5.4%

6300 · Planning & Zoning
6301 · Total Employment

630131 · Retirement 19,221.05 17,938.00 1,283.05 7.2%
63011 · Regular Salaries 71,904.74 57,276.83 14,627.91 25.5%
63012 · Overtime 0.00 71.34 -71.34 -100.0%
63013 · Benefits 8,639.19 4,610.72 4,028.47 87.4%
63014 · PR Taxes 5,434.46 4,693.58 740.88 15.8%
63015 · PZ Workmans Comp 2,237.31 1,681.19 556.12 33.1%

Total 6301 · Total Employment 107,436.75 86,271.66 21,165.09 24.5%

6302 · PZ Legal
63021 · Legal, BOZA 27.50 0.00 27.50 100.0%
6302 · PZ Legal - Other 0.00 1,100.00 -1,100.00 -100.0%

Total 6302 · PZ Legal 27.50 1,100.00 -1,072.50 -97.5%

6303 · Legal- Reimburseable 0.00 375.00 -375.00 -100.0%

6304 · Consulting
63040 · Consulting / PZ 1,080.00 0.00 1,080.00 100.0%
63043 · Consulting New Town Office -10,000.00 10,000.00 -20,000.00 -200.0%

Total 6304 · Consulting -8,920.00 10,000.00 -18,920.00 -189.2%

6305 · Other Expenses
63051 · P/Z Office Expense 1,174.38 521.25 653.13 125.3%
63052 · P/Z Inspections 3,769.20 3,389.60 379.60 11.2%
63053 · P/Z Advertising 1,286.25 1,723.75 -437.50 -25.4%
63055 · Technical / Equipment 2,665.53 0.00 2,665.53 100.0%

Total 6305 · Other Expenses 8,895.36 5,634.60 3,260.76 57.9%

6306 · Reimbursable Expenses
63069 · Misc. Reimbursable Expenses 880.99 4,681.24 -3,800.25 -81.2%

Total 6306 · Reimbursable Expenses 880.99 4,681.24 -3,800.25 -81.2%

Total 6300 · Planning & Zoning 108,320.60 108,062.50 258.10 0.2%

6400 · Police
64000 · SMYLE Expenses 8,004.75 10,845.38 -2,840.63 -26.2%
6401 · Employment

640131 · Retirement 174,677.00 189,892.00 -15,215.00 -8.0%
64011 · Sworn Officers

640108 · Salary - Chief 51,328.83 52,024.97 -696.14 -1.3%
640111 · Regular Salaries / PFC & Patrol 204,109.39 252,255.43 -48,146.04 -19.1%
640112 · Overtime Officers 24,910.33 25,083.95 -173.62 -0.7%

Total 64011 · Sworn Officers 280,348.55 329,364.35 -49,015.80 -14.9%

64012 · Other Salaries
640124 · Crossing Guard OT 260.40 3,590.25 -3,329.85 -92.8%
640121 · Admininstrative Assistant - PD 21,906.86 21,487.20 419.66 2.0%
640122 · Overtime Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
640123 · Crossing Guards 7,249.20 9,514.40 -2,265.20 -23.8%

Total 64012 · Other Salaries 29,416.46 34,591.85 -5,175.39 -15.0%

64013 · Benefits 33,167.74 28,195.53 4,972.21 17.6%
64014 · PR Taxes 23,428.38 29,383.32 -5,954.94 -20.3%
64015 · Police Workmans Comp 23,899.61 17,962.02 5,937.59 33.1%

Total 6401 · Employment 564,937.74 629,389.07 -64,451.33 -10.2%

6403 · Liability & Property Insurance 14,120.00 13,358.00 762.00 5.7%
6404 · Other Identified Expenses

64061 · "MAX" Retirement Pay 0.00 1,782.38 -1,782.38 -100.0%
64059 · Donation/Eugenio 0.00 3,314.53 -3,314.53 -100.0%
64058 · Speed Camera Money/ Usage 4,763.44 35,981.00 -31,217.56 -86.8%
64057 · Body Camera Maint. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
64041 · Police Utilities 2,320.00 2,653.00 -333.00 -12.6%
64042 · Police Personnel Testing 1,717.75 0.00 1,717.75 100.0%
64043 · Police Uniforms 2,077.83 941.37 1,136.46 120.7%
64044 · Communications (radio) 4,477.61 3,873.89 603.72 15.6%
64045 · Police Equipment & Supplies 1,376.53 4,831.82 -3,455.29 -71.5%
64046 · Police Vehicle Expense

64046A · Police Vehicle Fuel(Cars) 5,771.46 0.00 5,771.46 100.0%
64046 · Police Vehicle Expense - Other 4,545.99 14,802.35 -10,256.36 -69.3%

Total 64046 · Police Vehicle Expense 10,317.45 14,802.35 -4,484.90 -30.3%

64048 · Police Miscellaneous 0.00 67.00 -67.00 -100.0%
64049 · Police Telephone 9,757.18 9,585.76 171.42 1.8%
64050 · Police Dues & Subscriptions 4,845.60 10,883.43 -6,037.83 -55.5%
64051 · Police Travel/Training 2,236.22 5,445.67 -3,209.45 -58.9%
64052 · Police Janitorial 2,600.00 2,700.00 -100.00 -3.7%
64053 · Police Office Expenses 3,067.95 4,652.05 -1,584.10 -34.1%
64054 · Security Systems (Security Systems) 0.00 80.00 -80.00 -100.0%

1:58 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels

01/04/24 Profit & Loss

Accrual Basis July through December 2023

Page 2

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 88 of 257



Jul - Dec 23 Jul - Dec 22 $ Change % Change

64056 · Generator Maintenance / SMPD 2,423.24 455.75 1,967.49 431.7%

Total 6404 · Other Identified Expenses 51,980.80 102,050.00 -50,069.20 -49.1%

Total 6400 · Police 639,043.29 755,642.45 -116,599.16 -15.4%

6500 · Public Works
65022 · Generator Maint. / Public Works 385.71 2,138.00 -1,752.29 -82.0%
65021 · PW Vehicle Exp. 1,425.47 2,708.86 -1,283.39 -47.4%
65020 · PW Office Exp. 0.00 66.89 -66.89 -100.0%
6501 · Employment

650131 · Retirement 27,984.72 27,057.00 927.72 3.4%
65010 · Supervisor / Public Works 0.00 500.00 -500.00 -100.0%
65011 · Regular Salaries / Crew (5) 100,395.64 76,635.80 23,759.84 31.0%
65012 · Overtime 6,797.21 4,649.34 2,147.87 46.2%
65013 · Benefits 35,932.46 33,794.00 2,138.46 6.3%
65014 · PR Taxes 11,347.86 10,109.85 1,238.01 12.3%
65015 · PW Workmans Comp 9,305.68 6,993.56 2,312.12 33.1%

Total 6501 · Employment 191,763.57 159,739.55 32,024.02 20.1%

6503 · Liability & Property Insurance 8,400.00 7,800.00 600.00 7.7%
6505 · Tree Planting & Maintenance 14,964.00 10,083.00 4,881.00 48.4%

6506 · Maint. & Grounds
65069 · Small Tools 1,683.64 3,700.06 -2,016.42 -54.5%
65061 · M/G Maint. & supplies 0.00 5.37 -5.37 -100.0%
65066 · M/G Miscellaneous 154.25 346.03 -191.78 -55.4%
65067 · M/G Telephone 1,323.33 862.77 460.56 53.4%

Total 6506 · Maint. & Grounds 3,161.22 4,914.23 -1,753.01 -35.7%

6507 · Sanitation & Waste
65076 · Trash Pick-Up 55,377.50 63,825.00 -8,447.50 -13.2%
65071 · Landfill Fees 2,269.33 4,358.00 -2,088.67 -47.9%
65072 · S/W Repairs & Maintenance 41.80 0.00 41.80 100.0%
65073 · S/W Vehicle Expense 6,338.29 4,560.58 1,777.71 39.0%
65074 · Recycling Service 25,300.00 30,394.50 -5,094.50 -16.8%

Total 6507 · Sanitation & Waste 89,326.92 103,138.08 -13,811.16 -13.4%

6508 · Streets/Sidewalks
65081 · Signs 1,068.97 2,142.87 -1,073.90 -50.1%
65082 · Sidewalk Repair 2,429.00 0.00 2,429.00 100.0%
65083 · Streets Maintenance & Supplies 5,049.58 4,194.70 854.88 20.4%
65084 · Storm Drain Repair & Maint. 58.20 400.00 -341.80 -85.5%
65087 · Streets Vehicle Expense 12,069.18 9,665.44 2,403.74 24.9%
65088 · Electric- Street Lights 24,816.30 23,834.78 981.52 4.1%

Total 6508 · Streets/Sidewalks 45,491.23 40,237.79 5,253.44 13.1%

6509 · Parks & Recreation
650920 · Nature Trail Ext. / MDOT Grant 5,800.00 0.00 5,800.00 100.0%
65091 · Other Expenses

650911 · Harbor Maintenance 188.05 961.46 -773.41 -80.4%
650912 · Parks/Rec Maint. & Supplies 11,706.32 12,986.41 -1,280.09 -9.9%
650913 · Parks/Rec Vehicle Maintenance 1,662.21 1,599.64 62.57 3.9%
650916 · Nature Trail Maintenance 1,948.80 807.97 1,140.83 141.2%
650918 · Park Enhancement Fund 2,208.55 1,000.81 1,207.74 120.7%
650919 · Horticulturist/Contract 7,878.75 14,928.75 -7,050.00 -47.2%

Total 65091 · Other Expenses 25,592.68 32,285.04 -6,692.36 -20.7%

Total 6509 · Parks & Recreation 31,392.68 32,285.04 -892.36 -2.8%

Total 6500 · Public Works 386,310.80 363,111.44 23,199.36 6.4%

6800 · Donations to Outside Agencies
6815 · SMCC Building Donation 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 100.0%
6812 · St. Michaels in Bloom 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.0%
6802 · Fire Deptartment 30,000.00 35,476.00 -5,476.00 -15.4%
6803 · Talbot County  Arts Council 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%
6804 · St. Mary's Square Museum 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%
6806 · Talbot County Library 7,000.00 5,000.00 2,000.00 40.0%
6807 · St. Michaels Comm. Center 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.0%
6809 · Bay Hundred Pool Donation 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 6800 · Donations to Outside Agencies 97,000.00 49,476.00 47,524.00 96.1%

Total 6000 · Gen'l Operational Disbursemen 1,664,728.04 1,686,958.29 -22,230.25 -1.3%

66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expenses) 12,926.98 -5,813.76 18,740.74 322.4%
6900 · Water Department Expenses

6901 · Employment
69011 · Regular Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
69012 · Overtime 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
69013 · Benefits 5,788.67 30.00 5,758.67 19,195.6%

Total 6901 · Employment 5,788.67 30.00 5,758.67 19,195.6%

6903 · Liability and Property Ins. 7,600.00 7,000.00 600.00 8.6%
6904 · Other Identified Expenses

69056 · Water Dept. Contractual Svcs. 0.00 3,300.00 -3,300.00 -100.0%
69039 · Staff Time / Water Dept. 60,786.50 60,590.50 196.00 0.3%
69041 · Water Office Expenses 649.48 365.04 284.44 77.9%
69042 · Water Computer/Telem. Software 0.00 1,715.95 -1,715.95 -100.0%
69043 · Water Postage 1,300.00 1,120.00 180.00 16.1%
69044 · Electric-Wells & Towers 13,884.00 15,601.00 -1,717.00 -11.0%
69045 · Water Testing 2,566.00 2,701.00 -135.00 -5.0%
69046 · Water Travel & Training 540.20 50.00 490.20 980.4%
69047 · Water Dues/subscriptions 300.00 346.25 -46.25 -13.4%
69048 · Water Telephone 1,637.64 1,936.88 -299.24 -15.5%
69051 · Water Materials/supplies 33,953.45 26,944.98 7,008.47 26.0%
69052 · Maint. on Arsenic System 694.20 104,933.12 -104,238.92 -99.3%
69055 · Water Lease Percentage 49,737.50 51,254.54 -1,517.04 -3.0%
69053 · Water Miscellaneous 336.28 189.34 146.94 77.6%
690531 · Maintenance on Generator #2 & 3 2,765.00 2,496.00 269.00 10.8%
690532 · Server Time - Mission Units 2,457.60 2,385.60 72.00 3.0%

Total 6904 · Other Identified Expenses 171,607.85 275,930.20 -104,322.35 -37.8%

6906 · Water Capital Expenses
69062 · Water Tower Maintenance Contrac 28,047.59 26,404.40 1,643.19 6.2%
69074 · Water Meter Replacements 42,729.57 125,850.30 -83,120.73 -66.1%

Total 6906 · Water Capital Expenses 70,777.16 152,254.70 -81,477.54 -53.5%

6907 · Interfund Loan-N Tower 1997 CDA 704.00 888.00 -184.00 -20.7%
6909 · 2006 Arsenic Debt Service 1,136.46 40,600.68 -39,464.22 -97.2%
6910 · 2016 MDE Arsenic Removal FSyste 0.00 107,497.62 -107,497.62 -100.0%

Total 6900 · Water Department Expenses 257,614.14 584,201.20 -326,587.06 -55.9%

7000 · Capital Expenditures
7001 · Police

700204 · Police Dept. HVAC Replacement 0.00 20,177.00 -20,177.00 -100.0%
700205 · SMPD Encapculation 0.00 24,945.45 -24,945.45 -100.0%

Total 7001 · Police 0.00 45,122.45 -45,122.45 -100.0%

7003 · Streets & Sidewalks
700300 · Flood Mitigation / N. Harbor Rd 33,520.40 0.00 33,520.40 100.0%
70032 · Brick Sidewalks 0.00 118,647.28 -118,647.28 -100.0%

Total 7003 · Streets & Sidewalks 33,520.40 118,647.28 -85,126.88 -71.8%

7004 · Parks and Recreation
700492 · Flood Mitigation/San Domingo Cr 27,463.50 0.00 27,463.50 100.0%
70041 · Public  Restrooms

700415 · - New Comfort Station 0.00 53.96 -53.96 -100.0%

Total 70041 · Public  Restrooms 0.00 53.96 -53.96 -100.0%

Total 7004 · Parks and Recreation 27,463.50 53.96 27,409.54 50,796.0%

1:58 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels

01/04/24 Profit & Loss

Accrual Basis July through December 2023

Page 3

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 89 of 257



Jul - Dec 23 Jul - Dec 22 $ Change % Change

7006 · Municipal Bldgs. Capital Exp.
70074 · Purchase of Env. Concern Prop. 2,635,172.33 0.00 2,635,172.33 100.0%
70070 · Comfort Station 0.00 166.11 -166.11 -100.0%

Total 7006 · Municipal Bldgs. Capital Exp. 2,635,172.33 166.11 2,635,006.22 1,586,302.0%

7007 · Sanitation and Waste
70073 · New Town Office / PD Mill St. 0.00 1,700.00 -1,700.00 -100.0%

Total 7007 · Sanitation and Waste 0.00 1,700.00 -1,700.00 -100.0%

7008 · Repair & Replacement
70089 · Retaining Walls - Mill St. 0.00 3,190.00 -3,190.00 -100.0%
70090 · Plumber Drive 0.00 16,500.00 -16,500.00 -100.0%

Total 7008 · Repair & Replacement 0.00 19,690.00 -19,690.00 -100.0%

Total 7000 · Capital Expenditures 2,696,156.23 185,379.80 2,510,776.43 1,354.4%

Total Expense 4,940,972.45 2,450,725.53 2,490,246.92 101.6%

Net Income -760,656.89 1,411,876.95 -2,172,533.84 -153.9%

1:58 PM The Commissioners of St. Michaels

01/04/24 Profit & Loss

Accrual Basis July through December 2023

Page 4

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 90 of 257



 

 

 

 

 

THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 

OFFICE OF CODE ENFORCEMENT, PLANNING AND ZONING 
300 MILL STREET 

P.O. BOX 206 

ST. MICHAELS, MD 21663 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning/Zoning Projects & Activities – December, 2023 

 

 

Environmental Concerns Master Plan:  

• The Planning Commission and Parks Board hosted a public input meeting on the proposed 

master plan options on December 5th.  

• Staff also started work on an annexation petition to bring the county portion of the site into the 

Town limits and a Special Exception application to allow the Town Administrative Offices on 

the property. 

• Staff worked on coordinating updated appraisals and survey maps for Program Open Space 

grants. 

 

Sea Level Rise Studies: The town held a kick off meeting with Rauch Engineering for work related to 

sea level rise mitigation along the Mill St. corridor area. The project is funded by the Maryland 

Department of Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency Management Agency. Two major 

grant funded projects were presented to the Commissioners in December related to Sea Level Rise 

Mitigation for E. Chew-W. Harbor Road and one for San Domingo Creek area. They were accepted by 

the Commissioners.  

 

Nature Trail Study: We initiated work on two new grants, one for continuing Sea Level Rise efforts and 

another to complete the construction plan designs for the nature trail. 

 

Planning Commission items under review included: expansion of a veterinary clinic and possible 

relocation of building to the Mill district. The board also discussed permits for electric car charging 

stations.  

 

Other Projects:  Staff continued work on updating window sign zoning rules and updates to the Short 

Term Rental code regulations. These will be reviewed by the Commissioners in February. 

  

 Board Meetings Held 

 Planning Commission – December 7th 

 Board of Zoning Appeals – December 19th 

 Historic District Commission Meeting – December 7th 

 Climate Change Sea Level Rise Commission Meeting – December 14th 

SETTLED 1670-1680 

INCORPORATED 1804 

TELEPHONE: 410.745.9535 

FACSIMILE: 410.745.3463 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 91 of 257



 
THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 

300 MILL STREET 

P.O. BOX 206 

ST. MICHAELS, MD 21663 
SETTLED 1670-1680       TELEPHONE 410.745.9535 

INCORPORATED 1804       FACSIMILE 410.745.3463 

 

 

 

TO: THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 

FROM: KATHY THOMAS, CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

DATE: JANUARY 4, 2024 

RE: BUILDING AND CODES MONTHLY REPORT DECEMBER 2023 

 

 

BUILDING PERMITS: 

• PERMITS ISSUED (3) 

COMMERCIAL OCCUPANCY PERMITS: 

• NA 

CODE ENFORCEMENT: 

• CODE VIOLATIONS 

o HIGH GRASS/WEEDS (0) 

o TRASH/RECYCLING (20 INSPECTIONS 3 VIOLATIONS AT THIS TIME) 

o PROPERTY MAINTENANCE (3) 

o TREE (1) 

• REMOVED (1) PROPERTY FROM BLIGHT  

SPECIAL PROJECTS: 

• HDC LIGHTING (11) 

• HDC SIGNS (4) 

• OUTDOOR BURNING CODE AMENDMENT 

• IDENTIFY BLIGHT PROPERTIES (1) 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 92 of 257



Public Works Report 
December 2023 

  

 

Water consumption for December 2023 was 6.224 million gallons, this is an decrease of 

366,000 thousand gallons from December 2022’s consumption of 6.590 million gallons.  

 

Water System Jobs: 

1. Well house #2 FIRE and clean up / rehab / meetings all month 

2. Lead and copper training classes (two days) 

3. Water leak West Marengo  

4. Continued to take old meters apart 

5. Replaced chlorine hose and well #3 

6. Turn water back on at 24343 Chester Park (paid bill) 

7. Water reads for the whole system 

8. Water rereads and reads for remaining old meters 

9. Turn water off at 201 Cleveland for a plumber  

10. Rebuilt chlorine pump at #3 well on Glory Street 

11. Performed Backwash of both filters at #3 well on Glory Street 

 

Maintenance Jobs: 

1. Removed old business street sign from Mulberry Street 

2. Replaced bricks from around 3 utility poles that where replaced  

3. Multiple loads of bulk items to landfill 

4. Put up Christmas in St. Michaels signs  

5. Finished installing Christmas decorations 

6. Christmas parade and candy/trash clean up afterward 

7. Repaired Christmas lights at Muskrat park due to squirrel damage 

8. Shop clean up and organization 

9. Installed new address stickers at well house #2 fence  

10. Replaced bad receptacle on Talbot street trees 

11. Replaced turn sign around North Harbor road 

12. Replaced Dead End sign at beginning of Grace street 

13. Started building steps and platform for fuel pump 

14. Set up Scout lodge throughout the month 

 

Weekly Jobs:  

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 93 of 257



 

1. Daily cleaning and restocking of all three public restrooms 

2. Trail Maintenance Mondays and Fridays 

3. Daily water testing of Wells 2 and 3 

4. Trash pick-up Tuesdays (bulk items) Fridays and Sundays for public cans 

5. Brush pick-up Tuesdays 

6. Street sweeping Thursdays 

7. Weekly miss utilities  

8. Administrative duties 

9. Various meetings 

10. Watering of Town Planters, once a week 
 

 

 

• Update new Hybrid Public Works vehicle is on pace to arrive in February of 2024 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 94 of 257



DRIVER DATE TIME VEHICLE ODOMETER START READ END READ GALLONS

Kevin 12/1/2023 11:15 AM Backhoe N/A 80691 80715 24

Kevin 12/7/2023 2:00 PM Sweeper N/A 80715 80737 22

Kevin 12/14/2023 1:30 PM Sweeper N/A 80737 80756 19

Kevin 12/22/2023 10:00 AM Sweeper N/A 80756 80770 14

Shawn 12/28/2023 10:56 AM Ram 5500 3740 80770 80818 48

Kevin 12/28/2023 11:30 AM Sweeper N/A 80818 80831 13

December 2023 Diesel Pump

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 95 of 257



William Harvey 12.31.2026

Bonnie Morris 12.31.2028

Susan Oberreither 12.31.2026

Glenn Fong - Vice Chair 12.31.2026

Julie Campbell Carter 12.31.2026

Phyllis Kennedy 12.31.2026

Sue Ann Raring 12.31.2026

MaryLou Watson 12.31.2026

Mark E. Allen 12.31.2026

Mark Van Fleet 12.31.2026

Donald (Don) McCann 12.31.2027

William Boicourt 12.31.2027

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD: (3-year term)

WATERWAYS MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD: (3-year term)

CLIMATE CHANGE/SEA LEVEL RISE COMMISSION: (4-year term)

Newly Appointed/Re-Appointed Commission/Board Members

BOARD OF APPEALS: (3-year term)

PLANNING COMMISSION: (5-year term)

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION: (3-year term)

ETHICS COMMISSION: (3-year)

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 96 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 97 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 98 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 99 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 100 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 101 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 102 of 257



Discussion – September 13, 2023 

For Introduction – September 13, 2023 

Public Hearing –  

Adopted –  

Enacted – 

     

 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

Stricken : Indicate matter deleted from existing law. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 550 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 340, “ZONING”, OF THE CODE OF THE 

TOWN OF ST. MICHAELS, TO ADD PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE OPERATION 

OF CERTAIN CANNABIS BUSINESSES IN TOWN BY AMENDING THE LISTINGS OF 

PERMITTED USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL USE CATEGORY AND THE 

COMMERCIAL USE CATEGORY; PROVIDING FOR SUPPLEMENTAL USE 

REGULATIONS FOR CANNABIS BUSINESSES; REORDERING THE USES LISTED 

IN THE AGRICULTURAL USE CATEGORY; AND AMENDING THE TABLE OF 

PERMITTED USES TO PERMIT THE OPERATION OF CANNABIS BUSINESSES IN 

CERTAIN ZONES. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Local Government Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, §5-213, The Commissioners of St. Michaels (“the Town”) have the authority to provide 

reasonable zoning regulations subject to the referendum of the voters at regular or special 

elections; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the aforestated authority and the additional authority contained 

in Md. Code Annotated, Land Use Article, Division 1, “Single Jurisdiction Planning and Zoning,” 

Title 4, “Zoning”, the Town has enacted Chapter 340, “Zoning”, of the Town Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 340, § 98-2, the Town’s Planning Commission is 

charged with reviewing proposed amendments to the text of Chapter 340 and making 

recommendations to the Town Commissioners with respect to such proposed amendments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Maryland has enacted legislation legalizing the use of cannabis 

for recreational purposes under certain circumstances and providing for the licensure of cannabis 

growers, cannabis processors, and cannabis dispensaries by the Maryland Cannabis 

Administration; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Commissioners consider the public interest to be best served by 

the adoption of zoning regulations establishing the appropriate locations for facilities for the 

growing, processing and dispensing of cannabis in certain zones in the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning Commission has issued a report and recommendation 

with respect to the proposal to adopt a text amendment allowing the foregoing uses in certain 

zones in the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, having considered the report and recommendation of the Planning 

Commission, the Town Commissioners have determined to amend the text of Chapter 340 of the 

Town Code in order to implement the growing, processing and dispensing of cannabis products 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 103 of 257



 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

2 

 

in the manner most appropriate to the protection of the public health, safety and welfare in the 

Town. 

 

SECTION 1.  NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE 

COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS, that Chapter 340, “Zoning”, Article II, 

“Definitions”, Section 340-11, “Definitions,” be and hereby is amended to read as follows: 

 

§ 340-11   Definitions. 

In this chapter, the following terms are used according to stipulated definitions. For most of these 

terms, the definition is stipulated with the term in the list below. For some of these terms, the 

definition is stipulated elsewhere in this chapter, at a location indicated in the list below by a 

reference, after the term, in the form "For definition, see § 340-* of this chapter." 

 

ACCESSORY APARTMENT 

A dwelling unit located above the first floor of the principal structure on a lot or parcel of land, 

which dwelling is an accessory use to commercial use, which is the principal use located on the 

first floor of the same structure. 

 

*        *        * 

 

CALIPER 

The diameter of a tree is measured at breast height. 

  

CANNABIS BUSINESS, DISPENSARY, CANNABIS, GROWER, AND PROCESSOR 

HAVE THE MEANINGS SET FORTH IN MD. CODE ANN., ALC. BEVS. AND CANNABIS ART., DIVISION 

III, “CANNABIS”. 

 

 

*        *        * 

 

ZONING CERTIFICATE 

Written permission, on a form utilized by the Town, issued by the Zoning Inspector, as a condition 

precedent to the commencement of a use or erection, construction, reconstruction, restoration, 

alteration, conversion, or installation of a structure or building which acknowledges that such use, 

structure or building complies with the provisions of this zoning chapter or authorized variance 

therefrom. 

 

SECTION 2.  BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE 

COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS, that Chapter 340, “Zoning”, of the St. Michaels 

Town Code, Article VII, “Permitted Uses,” Section 340-44. “Agricultural use category”, be and 

is hereby amended to add “Cannabis Grower” and “Cannabis Processor”, as a new use and to 

reorder the existing uses listed therein, to read as follows: 

 

§ 340-44. Agricultural use category. 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 104 of 257

https://ecode360.com/36447539#36447539
https://ecode360.com/36447563#36447563
https://ecode360.com/36447743#36447743
https://ecode360.com/print/ST1595?guid=36448515#36448515


 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

3 

 

This category includes uses such as gardens, farms, and orchards that involve the raising and 

harvesting of food and nonfood crops and commercial raising of poultry or livestock. This 

category includes routine accessory packaging, storage or light processing of crops or wood 

products and sale of seeds, fertilizer, and similar agricultural needs on site. The category also 

includes harvesting and processing of seafood. This category does not include a slaughterhouse 

or meatpacking facility, which are categorized as industrial. 

 

A.   Agriculture, animal production. The principal or accessory use of land for the keeping or 

raising of farm animals, including poultry, horses, cows, and swine. 

 

B.  Agriculture, crop production. The use of land for growing, raising, or marketing of plants 

to produce food, feed, or fiber commodities or nonfood crops. Examples of crop agriculture 

include cultivation and tillage of the soil and growing and harvesting of agricultural or 

horticultural commodities. Crop agriculture does not include community gardens or the raising 

or keeping of farm animals. 

 

C.  Agriculture, buildings, and structures. This category includes all buildings and structures 

associated with agriculture uses as opposed to the activities associated with crop or animal 

production, e.g., grain storage as a principal use. 

 

D.  Indoor plant cultivation. A building or structure and the associated premises used to 

grow plants under roof, which may include accessory storage and processing of plants grown on 

premises. Included in this category are greenhouses and hydroponic facilities. 

 

E.  Plant nursery. Buildings, structures, and uses associated with plant propagation, grown to 

usable size. This category includes retail nurseries that sell to the general public, wholesale 

nurseries that sell only to businesses such as other nurseries and commercial gardeners, and 

private nurseries that supply the needs of institutions or private estates. 

 

F.  Fisheries activities, aquaculture. Buildings, structures, and uses associated with the 

rearing of aquatic animals or the cultivation of aquatic plants for food. 

 

G.  Farm-to-table activities. This category includes temporary retail uses, including roadside 

produce stands and farmers markets. 

 

H.   Forestry. Activities related to harvesting, thinning, and other management practices 

associated with commercial timber harvesting. 

 

I.   Commercial stables. Facilities for the housing of horses or other equines operated for 

remuneration. This category includes activities associated with the commercial hiring out of 

horses or ponies or instruction in riding as well as the care, breeding, boarding, rental, riding or 

training of equines and other farm animals or the teaching of equestrian skills. 

 

A.   AGRICULTURE, ANIMAL PRODUCTION. THE PRINCIPAL OR ACCESSORY USE OF LAND FOR THE 

KEEPING OR RAISING OF FARM ANIMALS, INCLUDING POULTRY, HORSES, COWS, AND SWINE. 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 105 of 257

https://ecode360.com/print/36448516#36448516
https://ecode360.com/print/36448517#36448517
https://ecode360.com/print/36448518#36448518
https://ecode360.com/print/36448519#36448519
https://ecode360.com/print/36448520#36448520
https://ecode360.com/print/36448521#36448521
https://ecode360.com/print/36448522#36448522
https://ecode360.com/print/36448523#36448523
https://ecode360.com/print/36448524#36448524
https://ecode360.com/print/36448516#36448516


 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

4 

 

 

B.  AGRICULTURE, CROP PRODUCTION. THE USE OF LAND FOR GROWING, RAISING, OR 

MARKETING OF PLANTS TO PRODUCE FOOD, FEED, OR FIBER COMMODITIES OR NONFOOD CROPS. 

EXAMPLES OF CROP AGRICULTURE INCLUDE CULTIVATION AND TILLAGE OF THE SOIL AND GROWING 

AND HARVESTING OF AGRICULTURAL OR HORTICULTURAL COMMODITIES. CROP AGRICULTURE DOES 

NOT INCLUDE COMMUNITY GARDENS OR THE RAISING OR KEEPING OF FARM ANIMALS. 

 

C.  AGRICULTURE, BUILDINGS, AND STRUCTURES. THIS CATEGORY INCLUDES ALL BUILDINGS 

AND STRUCTURES ASSOCIATED WITH AGRICULTURE USES AS OPPOSED TO THE ACTIVITIES 

ASSOCIATED WITH CROP OR ANIMAL PRODUCTION, E.G., GRAIN STORAGE AS A PRINCIPAL USE. 

 

D.  CANNABIS GROWER.  FACILITIES LICENSED AS CANNABIS GROWERS BY THE STATE OF 

MARYLAND THROUGH THE MARYLAND CANNABIS ADMINISTRATION.  

 

E. CANNABIS PROCESSOR.  FACILITIES LICENSED AS CANNABIS PROCESSOR FACILITIES BY THE 

STATE OF MARYLAND THROUGH THE MARYLAND CANNABIS ADMINISTRATION.  

 

F. COMMERCIAL STABLES. FACILITIES FOR THE HOUSING OF HORSES OR OTHER EQUINES 

OPERATED FOR REMUNERATION. THIS CATEGORY INCLUDES ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 

COMMERCIAL HIRING OUT OF HORSES OR PONIES OR INSTRUCTION IN RIDING AS WELL AS THE CARE, 

BREEDING, BOARDING, RENTAL, RIDING OR TRAINING OF EQUINES AND OTHER FARM ANIMALS OR 

THE TEACHING OF EQUESTRIAN SKILLS. 

 

G.  FISHERIES ACTIVITIES, AQUACULTURE. BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND USES ASSOCIATED 

WITH THE REARING OF AQUATIC ANIMALS OR THE CULTIVATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR FOOD. 

 

H.  FARM-TO-TABLE ACTIVITIES. THIS CATEGORY INCLUDES TEMPORARY RETAIL USES, 

INCLUDING ROADSIDE PRODUCE STANDS AND FARMERS MARKETS. 

 

I.   FORESTRY. ACTIVITIES RELATED TO HARVESTING, THINNING, AND OTHER MANAGEMENT 

PRACTICES ASSOCIATED WITH COMMERCIAL TIMBER HARVESTING. 

 

J. INDOOR PLANT CULTIVATION. A BUILDING OR STRUCTURE AND THE ASSOCIATED PREMISES 

USED TO GROW PLANTS UNDER ROOF, WHICH MAY INCLUDE ACCESSORY STORAGE AND PROCESSING 

OF PLANTS GROWN ON PREMISES. INCLUDED IN THIS CATEGORY ARE GREENHOUSES AND 

HYDROPONIC FACILITIES. 

 

K.  PLANT NURSERY. BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND USES ASSOCIATED WITH PLANT 

PROPAGATION, GROWN TO USABLE SIZE. THIS CATEGORY INCLUDES RETAIL NURSERIES THAT SELL 

TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC, WHOLESALE NURSERIES THAT SELL ONLY TO BUSINESSES SUCH AS OTHER 

NURSERIES AND COMMERCIAL GARDENERS, AND PRIVATE NURSERIES THAT SUPPLY THE NEEDS OF 

INSTITUTIONS OR PRIVATE ESTATES. 

 

Section 3.  BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED by The Commissioners of St. 

Michaels, that Chapter 340, “Zoning”, of the St. Michaels Town Code, Article VII, “Permitted 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 106 of 257

https://ecode360.com/print/36448517#36448517
https://ecode360.com/print/36448518#36448518
https://ecode360.com/print/36448522#36448522
https://ecode360.com/print/36448523#36448523
https://ecode360.com/print/36448520#36448520


 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

5 

 

Uses,” Section 340-48. “Commercial use category”, be and is hereby amended to add new 

subsection E., “Cannabis Dispensary,” to read as follows: 

§ 340-48.  Commercial use category. 

 

The commercial use category includes uses that provide a business service or involve the selling, 

leasing, or renting of merchandise to the public. The commercial use subcategories are as follows: 

 

*       *        * 

 

D.  Broadcast or recording studio. Uses that provide for audio or video production, recording, or 

broadcasting. 

(1)   Broadcast facility. An establishment primarily engaged in the provision of broadcasting 

and other information relay services accomplished using electronic and telephonic mechanisms, 

including radio, television, and film. 

(2)   Recording studio. An establishment primarily engaged in sound or video recording. 

 

E.  CANNABIS DISPENSARY.  FACILITIES LICENSED AS CANNABIS DISPENSARIES BY THE STATE 

OF MARYLAND THROUGH THE MARYLAND CANNABIS ADMINISTRATION.  

 

E.F. Commercial service. Uses that provide for consumer or business services and the repair 

and maintenance of a wide variety of products. 

 

*       *        * 

 

F.G.   Day care. Uses providing care, protection, and supervision for children or adults 

regularly away from their primary residence for less than 24 hours per day. Examples include 

state-licensed child-care centers, preschools, nursery schools, head start programs, after-school 

programs, and adult day-care facilities. Day care expressly includes state-accredited adult day-

care facilities and facilities for childcare. 

 

*       *        * 

 

G.H.  Eating and drinking establishments. The eating and drinking establishments use type 

refers to establishments or places of business primarily engaged in the sale of prepared foods 

and beverages for on- or off-premise consumption. Typical uses include restaurants, short order 

eating places or bars and cafés, restaurants, cafeterias, ice cream/yogurt shops, coffee shops, and 

similar establishments, which may include a bar area that is customarily incidental and 

subordinate to the principal use as an eating establishment. 

 

*       *        * 

 

H.I.   Financial service. Uses related to the exchange, lending, borrowing, and safe-keeping of 

money. Typical examples are banks, credit unions, and consumer loan establishments. 

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 107 of 257

https://ecode360.com/print/36448578#36448578
https://ecode360.com/print/36448579#36448579
https://ecode360.com/print/36448587#36448587


 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

6 

 

I.J.   Funeral and mortuary service. Uses that provide services related to the death of humans 

or companion animals, including funeral homes, mortuaries, crematoriums, and similar uses. 

 

J.K.   Lodging. Uses that provide temporary lodging for less than 30 days where rents are 

charged by the day or by the week. Lodging includes the following specific categories: 

 

*       *        * 

 

K.L.   Office. Uses in an enclosed building, customarily performed in an office that focuses on 

providing executive, management, administrative, professional, or medical services. This 

category includes: business office uses for companies and nongovernmental organizations such 

as corporate office, law offices, architectural firms, insurance companies, and other executive, 

management or administrative offices for businesses and corporations; professional offices 

where services are provided that require specialized training or professional certification, 

including but not limited to, an accountant, appraiser, attorney, architect, landscape architect, 

engineer, surveyor, and stockbroker; and medical, dental and health practitioner office uses 

related to diagnosis and treatment of human patients' illnesses, injuries and physical maladies 

that can be performed in an office setting with no overnight care. Surgical, rehabilitation, and 

other medical centers that do not involve overnight patient stays are included in this category, as 

are medical and dental laboratories. 

 

L.M.   Parking, non-accessory. Parking that is not provided to comply with minimum off-street 

parking requirements and that is not provided exclusively to serve occupants of or visitors to a 

particular use but instead is available to the public-at-large. Examples include commercial 

parking garages. A parking facility that provides both accessory and non-accessory parking will 

be classified as non-accessory parking if it leases 25% or more of its spaces to non-occupants of 

or persons other than visitors to a particular use. 

 

M.N.  Retail sales. Uses involving the sale, lease, or rental of new or used goods to the ultimate 

consumer within an enclosed structure, unless otherwise specified. The retail category includes 

sales of convenience goods, including 1) sundry goods; 2) products for personal grooming and for 

the day-to-day maintenance of personal health or 3) food or beverages for off-premise 

consumption, including grocery stores and similar uses that provide incidental and accessory food 

and beverage service as part of their primary retail sales business. Typical uses include drugstores, 

grocery, and specialty food stores, wine or liquor stores, gift shops, newsstands, and florists. This 

category also includes consumer shopping goods such as uses that sell or otherwise provide 

wearing apparel, fashion accessories, furniture, household appliances, and similar consumer 

goods, large and small, functional and decorative, for use, entertainment, comfort or aesthetics. 

Typical uses include clothing stores, department stores, appliance stores, TV, computer hardware 

and electronics stores, bike shops, bookstores, costume rental stores, uniform supply stores, 

stationery stores, art galleries, hobby shops, furniture stores, pet stores, and pet supply stores, shoe 

stores, cigar stores, copy shops, travel agencies, dry cleaning, beauty and barber shops, craft shops, 

bakery, antique shops, secondhand stores, record stores, toy stores, sporting goods stores, variety 

stores, video stores, musical instrument stores, office supplies and office furnishing stores and wig 

shops and other consumer shopping uses of the same general character. 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 108 of 257



 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

7 

 

 

N.O.   Self-service storage facility (e.g., mini-storage). An enclosed use that provides separate, 

small-scale, self-service storage facilities leased or rented to individuals or small businesses. 

Facilities are designated to accommodate only interior access to storage lockers or drive-up 

access. 

 

O.P.  Studio, instructional or service. Uses in an enclosed building that focus on providing 

instruction or training in music, dance, drama, fine arts, language, or similar activities. It also 

includes artist studios and photography studios. See also "personal improvement service" in the 

commercial services use category. 

 

P. Q.  Trade school. Uses in an enclosed building that focus on teaching the skills needed to 

perform a job. Examples include schools of cosmetology, modeling academies, computer training 

facilities, vocational schools, administrative business training facilities, and similar uses. 

 

Q. R.  Motorized vehicle sales and service. Uses that provide for the sale, rental, maintenance, 

or repair of new or used vehicles and vehicular equipment. The vehicle sales and service 

subcategory include the following specific use types: 

 

*       *        * 

 

 

SECTION 4.  BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE 

COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS, that Chapter 340, “Zoning”, of the St. Michaels 

Town Code, Article VIII, “Supplemental Use Regulations”, be and hereby is amended to add § 

340-90, Cannabis Dispensaries or Business”, to read as follows: 

 

§ 340-90.  CANNABIS BUSINESSES 

A. A CANNABIS BUSINESS MUST PROVIDE EVIDENCE THAT A LICENSE FROM THE MARYLAND 

CANNABIS ADMINISTRATION TO OPERATE A CANNABIS BUSINESS HAS BEEN ISSUED TO THE OWNER(S) 

OF THE BUSINESS AND CURRENTLY IS IN EFFECT.  

 

B. A CANNABIS BUSINESSES MUST CONFORM TO ALL REGULATIONS OF THE MARYLAND 

CANNABIS ADMINISTRATION RELATING TO THE PARTICULAR TYPE OF CANNABIS BUSINESS, 

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY REQUIREMENT RELATING TO LABELING, PACKAGING, AND 

ADVERTISING, AGE RESTRICTIONS AND VENDOR TRAINING. 

 

C. ON-SITE CONSUMPTION OF ANY CANNABIS PRODUCTS AT A CANNABIS BUSINESS IS 

PROHIBITED.  CANNABIS MAY NOT BE CONSUMED IN ANY ZONE OUTSIDE AN ENCLOSED STRUCTURE 

OR IN ANY MANNER THAT RESULTS IN DETECTABLE SMOKE, FUMES, OR ODORS ON ANY ADJACENT 

PROPERTY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY. 

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 109 of 257



 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

8 

 

D. A CANNABIS BUSINESS MUST BE SEPARATED BY AT LEAST 500’, AS MEASURED FROM 

PROPERTY LINE TO PROPERTY LINE, FROM SCHOOLS, CHILD CARE CENTERS, PLAYGROUNDS, 

RECREATION CENTERS, LIBRARIES, OR PUBLIC PARKS AND 1,000’ FROM ANOTHER CANNABIS 

BUSINESS AS MEASURED FROM PROPERTY LINE TO PROPERTY LINE AT CLOSEST POINT. 

 

SECTION 5. BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE 

COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS, that the Table of Uses adopted in Chapter 340, 

“Zoning”, of the St. Michaels Town Code, Article VII, “Permitted Uses”, be and hereby is 

amended as set forth in Exhibit A hereto.  

 

SECTION 6. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court or competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 

SECTION 8. The title of this Ordinance, or a condensed version thereof, shall be deemed 

to be, and is, a fair summary of this Ordinance for publication and all other purposes. 

 

AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) 

days after adoption, having been introduced on the ___ day of _________, 2024, and passed by a 

majority vote of The Commissioners of St. Michaels following a public hearing of The 

Commissioners of St. Michaels on the ____ day of _______, 2024, which latter date shall be at 

least six and no more than 70 days after the date of its introduction. 

 

Breimhurst ___ 

 

Harrod  ___ 

 

DuPont ___ 

 

Whittington ___ 

 

Mercier ___ 

 

ATTEST: THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 

 

 

             

Kristen Payne, Town Clerk   David Breimhurst, President 

 

  

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 110 of 257



 

Underlining : Indicate matter added to existing law. 

*** Asterisks : Indicate matter retained in existing law but omitted herein. 

9 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that an exact copy of the above Ordinance was posted from the ____ day 

of _________, 2024, at 8:30 a.m. to the ____ day of __________, 2024, at 4:30 p.m., on the 

bulletin board at the St. Michaels Town Office, and that a summary of the above Ordinance, the 

date of its passage, its effective date, and a statement that the entire text of the Ordinance will 

appear on the bulletin board of the Town Office, St. Michaels, Maryland, for at least twenty (20) 

days following the passage, has been published at least once each week for two (2) consecutive 

weeks following the passage of said Ordinance in a newspaper having general circulation in the 

Town of St. Michaels. 

 

 

Date:     , 2024          

Robert Straebel, Town Administrator 

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 111 of 257



EXHIBIT A 

 

 
$340-56.  Table of Permitted Uses                                       Zoning District 

 Use Description    A    R-1    R-2   R-3    RG    WD   CC   HR   SLC   GC   MC   MM   PF 
AGRICULTURE              
       Agriculture, crop production     P     N     N     N     P     P     N     N     N     N     N     N     P 
       Agriculture, buildings and structures     P     N     N     N     P     P     N     N     N     N     N     N     P 
       AGRICULTURE, CANNABIS GROWER OR PROCESSOR      P     N     N     N     N     N     N     N     N     N     N     N      N 

 
        *        *        * 

             

COMMERCIAL              
Adult entertainment establishments N N N N N N N N N P N N N 

Animal service              
 
*        *        * 

             

  Broadcast or recording studio              

Broadcast facility N N N N N N N N N P N N N 

Recording studio N N N N N N P N N P N N N 

CANNABIS DISPENSARY N N N N N N P      P N N N N N 

 
*        *        * 

             

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 112 of 257



 

Board:              Town Commission 

Meeting Date:         January 10, 2024   

Agenda Subject:    Discussion Regarding a Draft Ordinance to Prohibit Commercial 

Lawn Care Maintenance on Saturdays  

Recommendation: Discussion with input on draft ordinance       

_____________________________________________________________________                                

Background Information:  

At the December 13, 2023 meeting, Commissioners discussed regulations to prohibit 

the use of gas-powered leaf blowers.  A majority of Commissioners did not support the 

legislation.   

However, Commissioners discussed prohibiting any lawn care companies from working 

on Saturdays in St. Michaels.  Commercial lawn care operations would continue to be 

allowed to work Monday through Friday, 10:00am-6:00pm.  There is currently a ban for 

these companies to operate on Sundays and federal holidays.   

Draft ordinance highlights include the following: 

❖ Property owners would still be allowed to use lawn maintenance equipment 

Monday-Friday 8:00am-8:00pm and 8:00am-6:00pm Saturdays and Sundays 

and on federal holidays. 

❖ Per the draft legislation, commercial lawn care maintenance would no longer be 

allowed on Saturdays (currently allowed from 10:00am to 4:30pm on Saturdays); 

❖ Staff proposes to strike “and 10:00am to 4:30pm on Saturdays unless weather 

conditions have prohibited normal lawn maintenance” for commercial lawn care 

contractors as this is very ambiguous and will be difficult for Staff to administer.  It 

may be best to just state that there will be no commercial lawn maintenance 

allowed on Saturdays.   

Action:  

Comments and direction to Staff.  If Commissioners are agreeable to draft legislation, a 

motion could be made to schedule a Public Hearing for February 14, 2024.   

 

 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 113 of 257



 

 

Discussion – October 25, 2023 

For Introduction – October 25, 2023 

Public Hearing –  

Adopted –  

Enacted – 

 

 

 

UNDERLINED SMALL CAPS :  Indicate matter added to existing law. 

Strikethroughs : Indicate matter deleted from the existing law. 

Asterisks * * * :  Indicate matter remaining unchanged in existing law but not set 

forth in the Ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NO. 552 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF ST. MICHAELS, 

CHAPTER 216, “NOISE”, § 216-6, “EXEMPTIONS,” TO PROHIBIT COMMERCIAL 

LAWN CARE CONTRACTORS FROM OPERATING LAWN MAINTENANCE 

EQUIPMENT ON SATURDAYS  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Local Government, § 5-202, the Commissioners 

of St. Michaels (“the Town”) has the general power to adopt such ordinances as it may deem 

necessary in order to assure the good government of the Town, to protect and preserve the Town’s 

rights, property, and privileges, to preserve peace and good order, to secure persons and property 

from danger and destruction, and to protect the health, comfort and convenience of the residents 

of the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, Md. Code Ann., Environment Article, Title 3 “Noise Control” (“Title 3”), 

does not limit the power of a political subdivision to adopt noise control ordinances, rules, or 

regulations, except that a political subdivision may not adopt any noise control ordinance, rule, or 

regulation that is less stringent than the environmental noise standards, sound level limits, and 

noise control rules and regulations adopted under Title 3; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authority, and as authorized by the Town Charter, the Town 

enacted Chapter 216, “Noise,” of the Town Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners desire to preserve peace and good order in the Town and 

to protect the health, comfort, and convenience of the residents of the Town by amending the 

Town’s Noise Ordinance to prohibit noise in the Town generated by lawn maintenance equipment 

operated by commercial lawn care contractors on Saturdays as it can negatively impact residents’ 

quiet enjoyment of their properties.   

 

SECTION 1.  NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED that Chapter 

216, “Noise,” of the Code of St. Michaels, Section §216-6, “Exemptions,” be and hereby is 

amended to read as follows: 

 

§216-6 Exemptions  

 

Each of the following activities is hereby exempt from the prohibitions of this chapter to the extent 

noted below: 

A. Sound produced by the operation or testing of authorized emergency equipment. 

B. Sound produced by the operation of tools and machinery, or the loading or unloading 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 114 of 257

https://ecode360.com/7037399#7037399
https://ecode360.com/7037400#7037400


 

 

UNDERLINED SMALL CAPS :  Indicate matter added to existing law. 

Asterisks * * * :  Indicate matter remaining unchanged in existing law but not            

set forth in the Ordinance. 

Strikethroughs : Indicate matter deleted from existing law. 

 

2 

of supplies, used in construction, drilling, repair, alteration, renovation, maintenance, 

dredging, pile driving, or demolition during normal daytime business hours, or such 

similar activities as may be required during other times under emergency conditions 

may not exceed 90 dBA, A-weighted. For the purposes of this Subsection B, normal 

daytime business hours are Monday through Friday 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. and Saturday 

9:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., excluding federal holidays. For homeowners working on their 

own property, the Saturday hours apply also to Sundays and federal holidays. 

Commercial contractors may not work on Sundays or federal holidays unless there is 

an emergency and the building is open to the elements. 

C. The use and maintenance of lawn maintenance equipment:  

1. by the property owner, where such use and maintenance is in accordance with the 

manufacturer's specifications. This exemption applies only from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday.  

2. The use of lawn maintenance equipment by a commercial lawn care contractor, IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER’S SPECIFICATIONS. This exemption applies 

ONLY from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, and 10:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 

on Saturdays unless weather conditions have prohibited normal lawn maintenance. The 

use of lawn maintenance equipment by a commercial lawn care contractor is prohibited 

on SATURDAYS, Sundays and federal holidays.  

FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SUBSECTION, LAWN MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT SHALL 

INCLUDE LAWN MOWERS, TRACTORS, AND OTHER LAWN CARE EQUIPMENT TYPICALLY 

ASSOCIATED WITH COMMERCIAL LAWN CARE OPERATIONS.”  

 

*        *        * 

 

SECTION 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court or competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 

 

SECTION 4. The title of this Ordinance, or a condensed version thereof, shall be deemed 

to be, and is, a fair summary of this Ordinance for publication and all other purposes. 

 

AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take on __________ 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 115 of 257

https://ecode360.com/7037400#7037400


 

 

UNDERLINED SMALL CAPS :  Indicate matter added to existing law. 

Asterisks * * * :  Indicate matter remaining unchanged in existing law but not            

set forth in the Ordinance. 

Strikethroughs : Indicate matter deleted from existing law. 

 

3 

____, 2024  having been introduced on the ___ day of _____________, 2024, and passed by a 

majority vote of The Commissioners of St. Michaels following a public hearing of The 

Commissioners of St. Michaels on the ____ day of _________ 2024, which latter date shall be at 

least six and no more than 70 days after the date of its introduction. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Ordinance was passed by a yea or nay vote of The 

Commissioners of St. Michaels on ____ day of _          ____, 2024. 

 

Breimhurst ___ 

Harrod  ___ 

DuPont ___ 

Whittington ___ 

Mercier ___ 

 

ATTEST: THE COMMISSIONERS OF ST. MICHAELS 

 

 

             

Kristen Payne, Town Clerk   David Breimhurst, President 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that an exact copy of the above Ordinance was posted from the 

__th day of ___, 2024, at 8:30 a.m. to the __th day of _____, 2024, at 4:30 p.m., on the bulletin 

board at the St. Michaels Town Office, and that a summary of the above Ordinance, the date of 

its passage, its effective date, and a statement that the entire text of the Ordinance will appear on 

the bulletin board of the Town Office, St. Michaels, Maryland, for at least twenty (20) days 

following the passage, has been published at least once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks 

following the passage of said Ordinance in a newspaper having general circulation in the Town 

of St. Michaels. 

 

Date:     , 2023          

Robert Straebel, Town Administrator 

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 116 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 117 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 118 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 119 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 120 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 121 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 122 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 123 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 124 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 125 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 126 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 127 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 128 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 129 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 130 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 131 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 132 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 133 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 134 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 135 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 136 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 137 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 138 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 139 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 140 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 141 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 142 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 143 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 144 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 145 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 146 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 147 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 148 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 149 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 150 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 151 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 152 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 153 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 154 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 155 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 156 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 157 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 158 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 159 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 160 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 161 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 162 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 163 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 164 of 257



San Domingo 
Creek Park 
Master Plan

January 10, 2024

Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 165 of 257



Welcome
San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan 2Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 166 of 257



Agenda

• Welcome

• Schedule Overview

• Input Summary/Overview

• Site Analysis Overview

• Preliminary Concept Idea Review

• Draft Master Plan

• Discussion

• Close & Next Steps

3San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 167 of 257



Project Overview

4San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 168 of 257



Schedule

September | October 2023

Project Kick-off 9/12/23

Survey Launch 9/18/23

Outreach Meeting #1 (Input) 10/3/23

Outreach Meeting #2 (Input) 10/4/23

Survey Close 10/10/23

Outreach Meeting #3 (Concept Alt.) 10/24/23

November-February 2024

Outreach Meeting #4 (Preferred Plan) 11/15/23

Special Joint Meeting                                                          

Planning Com. and Parks/Rec. Board 12/5/23

Town Commission Meeting (Draft) 1/10/24

Town Commission Meeting (Final) 1/24/24

Final Submittal 2/2/24

5San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 169 of 257



Input Summary

6San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 170 of 257



What You Have Said....

7San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 171 of 257



Site Analysis – Elevation Study

8

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 172 of 257



Site Analysis – Existing Impervious Cover

9

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 173 of 257



Site Analysis – Existing Vegetation

10

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 174 of 257



Preliminary 
Concepts

11San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 175 of 257



Preliminary Concept – Option #1

12

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 176 of 257



Preliminary Concept – Option #1

13

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 177 of 257



14

Preliminary Concept – Option #2

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 178 of 257



15

Preliminary Concept – Option #2

MDOT RIGHT OF WAY

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 179 of 257



Program

• Dog Park (+ parking)

• Environmental Areas

• Wetland Expansion

• Living Shoreline (Waterfront Park)

• Pollinator Meadows

• Reforestation

• Boardwalk

• Town Administrative Building (+ parking)

• Water Access (Fishing Pier)

16

• Seating shelters (quiet spaces)

• Comfort/Water Station (restrooms)

• Pavilion

• Stormwater areas

• Viewing mound

• Loop walking trail

• Connections to nature trail and Waterfront park

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 180 of 257



17

Preliminary Concept Ideas

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 181 of 257



18

Preliminary Concept Ideas

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 182 of 257



Draft Master Plan

19San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 183 of 257



Draft Master Plan – Option 1A

20San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 184 of 257



Draft Master Plan – Option 1B

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan 21Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 185 of 257



Next Steps

September | October 2023

Project Kick-off 9/12/23

Survey Launch 9/18/23

Outreach Meeting #1 (Input) 10/3/23

Outreach Meeting #2 (Input) 10/4/23

Survey Close 10/10/23

Outreach Meeting #3 (Concept Alt.) 10/24/23

November-February 2024

Outreach Meeting #4 (Preferred Plan) 11/15/23

Special Joint Meeting                                                          

Planning Com. and Parks/Rec. Board 12/5/23

Town Commission Meeting (Draft) 1/10/24

Town Commission Meeting (Final) 1/24/24

Final Submittal 2/2/24

San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan 22Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 186 of 257



Discussion

23San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 187 of 257



Thank you!

24San Domingo Creek Park Master Plan Town Commission Meeting | January 2024Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 188 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 189 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 190 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 191 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 192 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 193 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 194 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 195 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 196 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 197 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 198 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 199 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 200 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 201 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 202 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 203 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 204 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 205 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 206 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 207 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 208 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 209 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 210 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 211 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 212 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 213 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 214 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 215 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 216 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 217 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 218 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 219 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 220 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 221 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 222 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 223 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 224 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 225 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 226 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 227 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 228 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 229 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 230 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 231 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 232 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 233 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 234 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 235 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 236 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 237 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 238 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 239 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 240 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 241 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 242 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 243 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 244 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 245 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 246 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 247 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 248 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 249 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 250 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 251 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 252 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 253 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 254 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 255 of 257



Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 256 of 257



Notes

January 10, 2024  

Work Session

Reports / Minutes / Events / Consent Agenda Calendar 

discussion/Department Reports

WLMC - Presentation of FY23 Financial Statement

Ordinance No 550 - Public Hearing - Cannabis Zoning

Proposal - Michmas - End of Summer beginning of Harvest

Ordinance No. 552 - Regulations pertaining to commercial lawn care on Saturdays??

Announcement of Appointments made for new Board Members List of appointees (just new)

San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Waterfront Park Master Plan No memo sheet

January 24, 2024  

Legislative Session

Ordianance No. 553 - Increase members of the Parks and Recs

San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Waterfront Park Master Plan

Discussion - Short Term Rentals

Ordinance No.     - Window Signs

February 14, 2024  

Work Session

Reports / Minutes / Events / Consent Agenda Calendar 

discussion/Department Reports

February 28, 2024  

Legislative Session

March 13, 2024  

Work Session

Reports / Minutes / Events / Consent Agenda Calendar 

discussion/Department Reports

 

Misc. Followup

1/5/24

Page 1 of 1
Confidential Information - For Board Use Only - Do not Redistribute    Page 257 of 257


	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Memo - Nelson Presentation St. Michaels Day
	Nelson Presentation St. Michaels Day
	June 23 2023 Financial Report from WLMC
	Meeting Minutes 12.13.2023
	December 2023 - Police Department
	December 2023 - Monthly Disbursements
	December 2023 - Actual vs. Budget
	December 2023 - P  L
	December 2023 - Planning Zoning Report
	December 2023 - Building Code Monthly Report
	December 2023 - Public works report
	December 2023 - SMPW Fuel Report
	Appointment of New Board Members 2024
	Memo - Ordinance No. 550 Cannabis Zoning
	Ordinance No. 550 - Cannabis Zoning
	Cannabis Zoning Ordinance No. 550  Exhibit A
	Memo - Ordinance No. 552 - Commercial Lawn Care Regualtions
	Ordinance No. 552 - Commercial Lawn Care Regulations
	Memo - San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan
	San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan
	San Domingo Creek - Boundary Lane Park Master Plan - Public Comments
	1.10.24 Proposed COSM Calendar

